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Dear SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
(the “reporting period”).

The Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB824,351,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB985,000,000),
representing a decrease of 16.3% as compared to 2015. Profit
attributable to owners of the parent was approximately RMB265,917,000
(2015: RMB302,198,000), representing a decrease of 12.0% over 2015.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.10 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016, amounting to the total sum
of approximately HK$80,109,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB71,082,000), to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
register of members as of Wednesday, 31 May 2017 subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming 2017 Annual General
Meeting (the “2017 AGM”). Taking into consideration the interim dividend
of HK$0.03 per share, the total annual dividend distributed for the year is
HK$0.13 per share. The dividend payout ratio is approximately 34.5%.

Generally speaking, the global situation of economy was still complicated
in 2016. As continuously affected by economic reforms, the operating
environment in the PRC market highly fluctuated, while all industries were
faced with different pressures. As for China’s pharmaceutical industry,
although it still maintained a growth trend, its overall growth rate slowed
down. Due to various medical and pharmaceutical policies and measures
issued by the Government, all types of pharmaceutical firms were still in
the face of a much fluctuant business environment. However, in
consideration of the particularity of medical service and the increasing
rigid social demand, plenty of opportunities also exist at related markets
in spite of various challenges. As the governmental resources and social
capital are expected to continuously invest in various sub-industries,
therefore China’s medical and healthcare industry still maintain favorable
development momentum.
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During the period, the Group’s turnover and profit decreased as
compared to 2015, which was primarily attributable to the Group’s
termination of Master Agency Agreement for “Leiyide” (& 51%) (Entecavir
Dispersible Tablets) in Mainland China, thus temporarily affecting the
sales volume as the Company needed to adjust the marketing structure.
The sales of “Leiyide” (F5 515) is expected to recover gradually through
unremitting effort of the marketing team. The Group’s contract to supply
Entecavir Tablets in Hong Kong market through the distribution business
partner of GlaxoSmithKline Limited, a partner of the Group, has operated
smoothly as a whole, and all parties concerned were satisfied with the
Group’s product quality and supply service.

In spite of the fierce market competition, a much stable market
foundation has been established as the Group implemented various
market strategies and plans during the earlier market launch phase of
system specific medicines. During the period, sales amount of major
varieties of the Group’s specific medicines except “Leiyide” (85 5 15)
increased significantly as compared to 2015, which has made important
contributions to the Group’s profitability.

During the period, the antibiotics end market tended to be stable, but its
growth still slowed down. Some homogeneous varieties competed
fiercely and led to the increasing difficulty in business operation. Besides,
as the Group adjusted relevant business strategies, production and sales
volume of intermediates and bulk medicines decreased during the
transition period, therefore the Group’s performance in cephalosporin
antibiotics failed to meet the expectations and recorded another loss, but
the amount of loss shrank as compared to 2015.

During the review period, Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Limited,
a newly-established wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, set up a
joint venture with dr 15 75 4= B2 &5 R/ 5] (Akeso Biopharma Inc.) for
the purpose of, including but not limited to, research, development,
production and sale of biodrugs. Relevant information has been published
in the Company’s announcement on 14 December 2016.
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Besides, considering the changes in surrounding environment of the
Group’s specific plants, the Group has gradually conducted feasibility
study on relevant solutions, and will duly announce the details when the
final solution is determined.

As to prospect of China’s medical and pharmaceutical industry, the
economic growth of China slows down, the government has applied
stricter standards and supervision on the pharmaceutical industry, and
particularly taken more rigorous management mechanism in terms of
price and circulation of drugs, which have increased the costs of
pharmaceutical enterprises. However, the Group still keeps its previous
views that benefitting from improving government medical resources and
medical insurance system, aging population, increasing health awareness
and affordability of the general public, there is still further development
room for social demands in the medical and pharmaceutical market,
while the pharmaceutical sector will still maintain continual and steady
growth.

Accordingly, based on the Group’s strength and weakness, as well as
the direction of government policies and the market demands and trends,
the Group considers the situation and continues to concentrate its
resources to perform the following tasks in 2017 in a more efficient
manner:

1) As to system specific medicines business, the Group will closely
monitor and follow up all designed and implemented marketing
policies and measures and strengthen management so as to
increase penetration rate to all-tier end markets in hope of a more
extensive and consolidated market coverage and a more favorable
condition of the Group’s system specific medicine sales. Therein, in
terms of the sales of “Leiyide” (5 515:) for treating hepatitis B virus,
the Group will allocate more resources, build the sales team and
channels, and intensify the market management system, so as to
make new breakthrough in sales.

2)  As to cephalosporin antibiotics business, considering that the drug
administration authorities in China and other countries are highly
concerned about clinical application and management of
antibiotics, growth space of relevant products has been restricted
at the end market and the operating environment was faced with
challenges. The Group will continue to make all efforts to improve
product quality and stability, and also curb production cost to make
the business of such series products finally reach balance between
revenues and expenditures.
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3) As to product R&D, the Group will accommodate to the
development tendency of disease spectrums among the public,
and carry out diversified cooperation with external institutions
through internal R&D resources by coordinating with the
government’s industry policy and by combining the Group’s
financial resources and business development conditions, in an
effort to enrich the Group’s drug varieties in development in all
treatment sectors more effectively, and foster more vital forces for
the Group’s profit growth in future.

The Group’s management team will continue to practice its time-honored
pragmatic style of operation, aim at the long-term shareholder interest,
make prudent decisions and focus on our business. Meanwhile, the team
will continue to recruit outstanding talents, optimize management system
and stabilise the management team in a bid to create reasonable returns
for the shareholders of the Company.

Meanwhile, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
appreciation for the support and cooperation from the Company’s
shareholders and directors and the Group’s business partners,
management personnel and all staff for my work in the previous year.

By Order of the Board

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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During the review period, under the pressure of intense market
competition, most of the Group’s system specific medicines still recorded
increase in sales amount while maintaining good business growth
momentum compared to 2015. In particular, as to anti-hypertensive drug
in “An” (%4£) series medicines and “Xikewei” (7§ ®] &), the Group’s
marketing team adjusted marketing measures to a reasonable extent,
strengthened allocation of resources, optimized supply and sales system,
and succeeded in achieving remarkable increase in sales amount of that
series of medicines, making extremely important contributions to the
Group’s profitability.

As to sales of “Leiyide” (5 515) (Entecavir Dispersible Tablets) for treating
hepatitis B virus, since the Master Agency Agreement for 0.5mg “Leiyide”
(F 5 15) was terminated in July 2016, the Group has directly planned
and organized the marketing of “Leiyide” (g5 Z515:). Apart from reinforcing
the original marketing channels, the Group also attached great
importance to expanding other regional markets, in an effort to bring into
full play the market potential of this product more effectively. Since the
Group’s sales team directly took over the front end sales of “Leiyide” (§&
515 in the second half of 2016, the sales management personnel has
considered in the long run and focused their overall work on adjusting the
structure and order of regional markets, so as to establish a more steady
market foundation and benefit future development of the product.
Consequently, sales of the product during the review period decreased
as compared to that in 2015.

In terms of the Group’s business of cephalosporin antibiotics, during the
period, the Group still recorded losses from the business of that series of
products, but the amount of losses shrank as compared to 2015. In
consideration of the fierce competition at China’s cephalosporin market,
the Group determined to adjust the strategy after evaluating various
factors and market tendency, and focused attention on production and
sales of cephalosporin varieties with higher added values, apart from
existing varieties. Therefore, some workshops need to be shut down for
transformation, leading to decrease in production and sales volume of
the Group’s intermediates and bulk medicines in 2016 as compared to
last year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s production and
sales volume of intermediates and bulk medicines decreased by 32.6%
and 34.0% respectively as compared to that in 2015; the decrease in
production and sales volume of intermediates and bulk medicines was
because the production workshops were shut down for transformation;
the production volume of cephalosporin powder for injection decreased
by 47.9% while the sales volume decreased by 20.0% as compared to
last year, where the decrease in sales volume of powder for injection was
attributable to the temporary loss of market in some regions. The
production volume of solid-dosage-forms decreased by 15.1% as
compared to last year, but the sales volume increased by 6.6% over last
year. As for the international business, the Group kept expanding its
overseas market, making the overseas sales accounted for 12.2% of
total sales volume of the Group; the export sales amount decreased by
19.0% as compared to last year due to the reduction in supply of bulk
medicines.

(1) In2016, a total of 18 declarations for registration were filed with the
Food and Drug Administration of Jiangsu Province (including 10
supplementary applications for approval or record and 8
applications for re-registration); a total of 30 approval documents
were obtained (including 2 production approval documents, 10
supplementary application documents for record, 15 re-registration
approval documents and 3 documents for issuing drug standards).

(2)  One patent certificate was obtained

The exterior shape design of Entecavir Dispersible Tablets was
granted the design patent certificate on 14 September 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEBI RS

HONORS AWARDED IN 2016 —E-ARFRBZERE

February 2016 “Leiyide” (5 5 75) Brand Entecavir Dispersible Tablets —Z—XE_A EIRBREBERESHAHIIHE
was recognized as Famous Brand Product of Jiangsu LR REELZESRTERLHFE
Province by Jiangsu Provincial Brand Strategy HhEEm °
Promotion Committee.

May 2016 Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was —Z—XFHA MR IM BB R A AR NI
honored as one of the “Top Ten Excellent Enterprises BHEESEE] LEET -
of Jiangsu Province”.

July 2016 “Cetirizine Hydrochloride Raw Materials and Tablets —Z—X&E+ A [EREEENERE R B (EA]
(“Xikewei”, 7 0] #)” and “Cefoperazone Sodium and E) ]~ [VE5T AR IR AR R T B2 18 4
Sulbactam Sodium for Injection (“Xianshu”, 4 #£F) and (5e47) REFRK] HIIHRERIER
its Raw Materials” were recognised as “High-tech MTEEAE B3R E BILER A = FT IRl B

Product of Jiangsu Province” by the Science and o °
Technology Department of Jiangsu Province.

September 2016 “Entecavir Raw Materials and Dispersible Tablets —Z— X8 [BEERERHMEREDHRK(ES

(“Leiyide”, 35 575)” and “Potassium Citrate Extended- B TsEsRERs (EER) ]
release Tablets (“Jieshitong”, {##1-[5])” were recognised ISR ERNEREREARL
as “High-tech Product of Jiangsu Province” by the BA R ER °

Science and Technology Department of Jiangsu

Province.

December 2016  “Amlodipine Besylate Tablets (“Anneizhen”, % 4 E.)”, T—AF+ZA [FEEastTs(ZRE)] B

[
e

“Entecavir Dispersible Tablets (“Leiyide”, &5 55)” and BERENSMA(EHE)]  [HEEEA
“Cetirizine Hydrochloride Tablets (“Xikewei”, 7§ o &)” BERER (AT E)] L% 20161
were honored as “Excellent Product Brand Award in BREBETEESEMMEE] -

Pharmaceutical Industry of Jiangsu Province in 2016”.
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SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately RMB824,351,000, which was decreased by
RMB160,649,000, represented a decrease of 16.3% compared with last
year. Of which the turnover of intermediate and bulk medicines was
RMB163,586,000 which was decreased by RMB76,026,000 or 31.7%
compared with last year. The turnover of finished drugs was
RMB660,765,000 which was decreased by RMB84,623,000 or 11.4%
compared with last year. The reasons for the decrease in turnover mainly
attributed to the decrease in sales volume of intermediates and bulk
medicines and temporary impact caused by the Group’s termination of
Master Agency Agreement for 0.5mg Leiyide and withdrawal of goods
from the general agency.

Sales amount of finished drugs, comprising system specific medicines,
powder for injection and tablets of cephalosporin and other oral solid-
dosage-form of antibiotics, reached approximately RMB660,765,000.
Taking into account of the total turnover, sales amount of finished drugs
was approximately 80.2% which was increased by 4.5 percentage points
compared with last year. Sales amount of system specific medicines
accounted for 90.2% of sales of finished drugs.

Gross profit was approximately RMB511,479,000 which was decreased
by RMB57,909,000 compared with last year, representing a decrease of
10.2%. Gross profit margin increased by 4.2 percentage points to 62.0%
from 57.8% as in last year. It was mainly due to the influence of increased
sales proportion of system specific medicines.

HERER

HE-_Z—X"F+-_A=+—BLLFE FEE2FH
EEH AR 824,351,000 * FLEF T FE16.3% @ $5E
T % AR 160,649,000 7T © £ A A 88 [ JR R} 24K
B AR 163,586,0007C * b EF T PE31.7% @ HERE
T B A R 76,026,000 0 X B fH E B AR
660,765,0007C * L EF NFE11.4% @ $HERE FEARE
84,623,0007C - X NEMNEERATIBHRFEE R
FERENEES TR EAEEIE- 2R [E55] 4
RIEBBZW MARIEEKEERERTZEM -

REBEZSGERE  BREZONHIHE - FEREMW
AR = BRI - 355 254 AR 660,765,000 7T
PRERHE RN AREESENLEN80.2% BE
FHHELLBIZMT A5 EB DR o Hh RGERBEK
BB EH90.2% °

EFNEELHAREES11,479,0007C @ L EFR D H AR
57,909,000t *© T IRE £10.2% » £ F| & £62.0% °
EEFRS7.8%EMNTHA2EE N - TERERIBEGY
B MM R L -

PRODUCT TURNOVER (RMB’000) SALES BREAKDOWN (%)
Em EXE (ARB T HELA (%)

Percentage
points
B
2016 2015 Changes 2016 2015 Changes
“E2-RF _ZT-1F Zig —T-XE —T-hfF 218
Intermediates and Bulk Medicines e e R R 163,586 239,612 -76,026 19.8 24.3 -4.5
Finished Drugs X B 660,765 745,388 -84,623 80.2 75.7 +4.5
Overall ge 824,351 985,000 -160,649 100.0 100.0 0.0
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During the year, the total expenses incurred were approximately
RMB202,605,000, equivalent to 24.6% of turnover (2015: 22.7%). The
total expenses decreased by approximately RMB21,075,000 compared
with last year which was RMB223,680,000. The selling and distribution
expenses increased slightly due to enhancement in distribution channel
development and strength in promotion and marketing effort.
Administrative expenses decreased by RMB10,315,000 compared with
last year due to strengthened control in administrative expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the segment profit of finished
drugs segment was approximately RMB419,905,000, which was
decreased by approximately RMB78,375,000 when compared with that
in 2015 which was RMB498,280,000. The segment results of
intermediates and bulk medicines segment recorded losses of
approximately RMB14,489,000. The loss was reduced by
RMB23,373,000 compared with the loss of RMB37,862,000 in 2015. As
the Group had strict control in the production cost of cephalosporin bulk
medicines, the overall production cost was reduced and the loss situation
of the Group’s bulk medicines business had larger improvement
compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, profit attributable to owners of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB265,917,000, recorded a
decrease of RMB36,281,000 or 12% compared with RMB302,198,000
in last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable to the temporary
impact caused by termination of Master Agency Agreement for 0.5mg
Leiyide, one of the system specific medicines, and withdrawal of goods
from the general agency.

As at 31 December 2016, net assets attributable to owners of the parent
were approximately RMB1,636,756,000. The return on net assets, which
is defined as the profit attributable to owners of the parent divided by net
assets attributable to owners of the parent, was 16.2% (2015: 20.5%).
The current ratio and quick ratio was 6.19 and 5.57 respectively.
Turnover days for trade receivables were approximately 50 days. The
turnover days for trade receivables including bills receivables were 111
days. Turnover days for inventory were approximately 157 days.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and bank balance
approximately RMB663,296,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB685,790,000). In addition, in order to operate the idle funds more
effectively and improve returns, the Group had placed total
RMB210,000,000 on principal-preservation type of structured deposits
with interest rates at 2.6%-2.8% p.a. to several creditworthy banks in
Mainland China. During the year, the net cash flows from operating
activities was approximately RMB320,258,000 (2015: RMB298,322,000).
Net cash flows used in investing activities was approximately
RMB105,739,000 (2015: RMB146,200,000). Net cash flows used in
financing activities was approximately RMB117,271,000 (2015:
RMB37,984,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had aggregate bank facilities of
approximately RMB724,397,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB763,035,000), of which, bank facilities of HK$40,000,000 were
secured by corporate guarantee of the Company. Of the aggregate bank
facilities including a mortgage loan of HKD120,000 and short term bank
loan of HKD10,000,000 which were subject to the arrangement of
floating interest rates ranged from HIBOR plus 1.5% to 1.75%. As at 31
December 2016, the debt ratio (defined as sum of interest-bearing bank
loans over total assets) of the Group was 0.5% (as at 31 December
2015: 0.5%).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had the inventory balance of
RMB124,746,000 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB147,747,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s contracted but not provided for
plant and machinery capital commitments amounted to approximately
RMB3,060,000 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB7,776,000), which mainly
derived from the sewage treatment works and workshop GMP renovation
in Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.

Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd.(“Dawnrays Biotechnology”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was set up in September
2016. In December 2016, Dawnrays Biotechnology and H ([ |5z J5 &%
@5 TH/\ 5] (Akeso Biopharma Inc.) (“Akeso”) entered into a joint venture
agreement, for the purpose of, amongst other things, establishing a joint
venture company, 5 gl B 77 (& ) B2 &% A5 [E /5] (AD Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd.) (“AD Pharmaceuticals”), and regulating the funding and
management arrangements with respect to AD Pharmaceuticals and the
respective rights and obligations of Dawnrays Biotechnology and Akeso.
Dawnrays Biotechnology proposed to invest RMB150,000,000 to hold
35% share interests in AD Pharmaceuticals. AD Pharmaceuticals is to be
engaged, including but not limited to, in the research and development of
products and technologies in relation to biochemistry fields; the
production and sale of related products.
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During the year, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Dawnrays
Internatioinal Co. Ltd. had re-invested the after tax dividend distributed
from Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. amounting
USD3,500,000 into the registered capital of Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.

In addition, for matching future development, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. had applied to increase the registered share
capital by USD86,500,000 and would be injected by instalments before 1
January 2045.

The Group has sufficient financial and internal resources to pay the
capital commitments, joint venture project and increased registered share
capital described above.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no significant external
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, part of the Group’s bank fixed
deposits and account receivable were denominated in foreign currency
and as the depreciation of Renminbi in 2016, the Group recorded
approximately RMB6,966,000 exchange gain. The Group’s substantial
business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, the
risk derived from the foreign exchange to the Group is not high, except
for the Group pays dividends in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the foreign
exchange risks are primarily with respect to Hong Kong Dollars. The
treasury policy of the Group is to manage any risk of foreign exchange or
interest rate (if any) only if it will potentially impose a significant impact on
the Group. The Group continues to observe the foreign exchange and
interest rate market, and may hedge against foreign currency risk with
foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate risk with interest
rate swap contracts if necessary.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately 887
employees and the total remuneration was approximately
RMB99,191,000 (2015: RMB118,611,000). The decrease was due to the
adjustment in production plan which cut off some employees and
reduced total remuneration compared with last year. The Group regards
human resources as the most valuable assets and truly understands the
importance of attracting and retaining high-performance employees. The
remuneration policy is generally based on the references of market salary
index and individual qualifications. The Group provides its employees with
other fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes,
share option scheme and medical coverage. The Group also offers some
of its employees stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEMWESH

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s assets with carrying amount of
approximately RMB31,815,000 were pledged to banks to secure
mortgage credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries (as at 31 December
2015: RMB29,821,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND
EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital commitments,
increased registered share capital and external investment under the
section “Liquidity and Financial Resources”, the Group does not have any
plan for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate governance can safeguard
the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. Therefore,
the Board has adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard
of corporate governance is maintained.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Ltd. (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2016,
except for the following deviation:

1. Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code—The roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”), was
appointed as the chief executive officer (“CEQ”) on 1 March 2015
which was a non-compliance to the Code Provision A.2.1. The
Board believes that a balance of power and authority can be
adequately ensured by the operation of the Board which comprises
experienced and caliber individuals. However, in order to re-comply
with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, Mr. Chen Shaojun has
been appointed as the Company’s CEO since 18 April 2016 and is
delegated with the authority and responsibility for managing the
Group’s business operation and implementing the development
strategies.

2. Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code—Attendance of Non-
executive directors at general meeting

Other than one Non-executive Director who was not in position to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May
2016 (the “2016 AGM”) due to an overseas commitment, all Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
attended the 2016 AGM.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the
accounting period covered by the 2016 annual report.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The management has been delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

No corporate governance committee has been established and so the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct to employees and directors such as
inside information disclosure regulations and assuring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc.

The Board held 26 board meetings including 6 regular meetings and 20
ad-hoc meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016. The regular
board meetings were to consider, among other things, reviewing and
approving the interim and annual results of the Group, overall group
strategy, annual budgets, approval of major capital transactions and
other significant operational and financial matters. The ad-hoc meetings
were convened when circumstance required such as review and approve
capital expenses for production facilities, granting share option to
employee, appointment of CEO and management, share repurchase and
investment in research and development and joint venture project etc.
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Details of the attendance of Directors at board meetings, annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and other three board committees’
meetings (the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee) during the year 2016 are set out in the

following table:

RZF—ARF ZBEENEFEER  A2RBEFER
ARg(BFRRAGDEAII=HEEZESH(F
ZELZEE REAZEENFMZES)MBFEFBIERN

No. of meetings attended/held
SERLRERE BITRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors BEEHR EEZe RRBEEXAE ERZEY REZES FHEEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) THRUL(FE) 25/26 11 4/4 5/5
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERIIE A 26/26 11
Mr. Li Tung Ming THBLE 24/26 11
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man 2ERR&AE 10/26 0/1
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi %t 4 14/26 1/
Independent Non-executive 7 3 i7&%E

Directors

Mr. Pan Xue Tian EERLE 14/26 11 3/3 4/4 5/5
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky gL 16/26 11 3/3 3/4 5/5
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRBTE 12/26 11 3/3 3/4 5/5

At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all Directors.
The agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at least 3 days
before the meetings of the Board and board committees so that the
Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises. Minutes of
meetings of the Board and board committees are recorded in sufficient
details that matters considered and decisions reached. The draft and final
versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors within a reasonable time
after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of the Board and board
committees are kept by the company secretary of the Company and
open for inspection on reasonable notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Upon
reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors can seek
independent professional advice to assist them to discharge their duties,
at the Company’s expenses.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a board meeting
with the presence of disinterested Independent Non-executive Directors
or a meeting of a board committee set up for that purpose pursuant to a
resolution passed in a board meeting.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to educational background, ethnicity, working
experience, professional skills, knowledge and length of service. All board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom three are
Executive Directors, two are Non-executive Directors and three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition meets the
requirement of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in
number of its members comprising Independent Non-executive Directors.
The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
accounting, business management and pharmaceutical industry
respectively. With their experience gained from senior positions held in
other organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out in pages 31 to 33 to the 2016 annual report,
which demonstrates the skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
one of the Executive Directors, are directors and ultimate shareholders of
several private companies incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin
Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
The balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong
independence exits across the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.
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Directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are willing to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code A.6.5 on
Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development and provided a record of training they received
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out below:

Briefings and updates

on the listing rules,
business, operations, and
corporate governance
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Attending or participating
in seminars/

conferences relevant

to the management/

matters business/directors’ duties

BELTHRY - 27 - EER HERSMESE ¥5

Directors 2= TEEAREECHBREY EEREEEEE8E
Ms. Li Kei Ling FTHR LT 4
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRRIIS ST A 4
Mr. Li Tung Ming ZTHRAFLEAE v

Mr. Leung Hong Man Z2RREE 4 v
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi & v
Mr. Pan Xue Tian EERLA v
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BUEHSTE 4
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRI E v/

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new Directors
first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board
during the year to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first general
meeting immediately followed their appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years and
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).
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At each AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office
according to the Company’s Articles. As the Company has eight
Directors, at least one third of them shall retire subject to rotation, and
barring unforeseen resignation/retirement during a year, each Director is
effectively appointed for an average term of not more than 3 years. Ms. Li
Kei Ling, Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony will retire at
the forthcoming AGM. Al retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the
business and governance policies of the Company. The Directors
endeavour to give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s affairs and
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies and
make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard
of conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They are also members of various board committees and scrutinize the
overall performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals
and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board with monthly
updates and adequate information to enable it to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it. Where any Director requires more
information than is volunteered by the management, each Director has
separate and independent access to the Group’s management to make
further enquires if necessary. Where queries are raised by Directors,
management will respond as promptly and fully as possible.
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Under Code Provision of the CG Code A.2.1, the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Board has appointed Ms. Li Kei
Ling as the Chairman. She has executive responsibilities and provides
leadership to the Board such as ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and received complete and reliable
information in a timely manner so that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities. Ms. Li Kei Ling was appointed as the CEO
on 1 March 2015. After the appointment, the roles of the Chairman of the
Board and the CEO were performed by the same individual. The Board
believed that the structure enables the Group to make and implement
decision promptly and efficiently which would be beneficial to the Group
as a whole. However it was a non-compliance to the Code Provision
A.2.1. In order to comply with the code provision requirement of
separating the roles of chairman and chief executive officer under the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the Board appointed Mr. Chen Shaojun as the CEO of the
Company on 18 April 2016. With the change came into effect, Ms. Li
focuses on executing the overall developmental strategies of the Group,
supervising implementation of the strategic management decisions to
ensure good corporate governance practices and business policies are
established, whereas Mr. Chen is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for implementing the Board’s policies and the Group’s daily
business operations and management. The CEO will periodically present
the updated market situation, long term strategies and objectives of the
Group, quarterly results variances analysis between the actual
performances and the budget targets to the Board at the Board meeting.
This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s business operations and to
adjust the targets when required.

The management provides explanation and information to the Board so
as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the approval by the Board.

The Directors and CEO acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements and announcements to shareholders. The
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board
therefore continues to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the accounts.

RIBERTANR A2 MTE » % MITHHARE 2 B% e
DR TEHEEA-AREI - EFELZETERLLIRE
B RAEBRTEIRREESS  RRESSEE
EREEEEEE NEE AR SR LR T 5
MEM FEFERMMEFMBETERE - =-F
—RHF=ZA-BREEIFEFERRIWERER/NAFRE
REFEER EFRTFIEENACHR-ARE &
SRR AR EANEE K BB U E L R EIRE A
MEAEBEZEEBNE  HEREETERTRIPAIHEK
STRAMEX A1 IRE » REES AR RIRLE ST LT AR BIMT 8%
1AEEERTHERIERERNAEEARDH T
B BEER _T-R"FHATN\BEZERBELE
RARFEE  BETAEMZ AR FLEZINGIE
AEBNERERRBEMETEERAEBRR 2T
FER I E RIFH B EEIA R AR MG ETTE - MERSTLE
BEYRANETABEHETEFENBRREAEENEE
EBNEERERETIF BENE—FEREFERSE
FEEE SLMAEHZ2THER AEBRYKE
B BRRREBERSEMEE 20N HES
PEZREREREBH 2 EBLEENRUEREFTAR -

ERERNESSRHAABRENRER <EFgTHR
SEEFEHREZUH REMERHELANSFE -

EENMEBARRERE VRFERUEAELA
AWRRAEEEBHN 2B HwERABRREZ2HH
NEEHBRRRAM - EEG LT MBI ERTHE
EARSHAEEOFELLR NI TERRER - At
EEMARAFELEEERUER -

23



The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.

The responsibilities of the auditors to the shareholders are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 50 to 55.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate
governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and
internal audit functions.

The senior management of the Group is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. Appropriate policies and controls have been set and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use
or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance
are appropriately identified and managed. However the systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition and to manage
operational risks. Of which including:

(i) establishing written policies and work flow for major operations and
production cycles to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, and industry standards;

(i) clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
business and operational unit, having in place appropriate
segregation of duties and setting proper authorization levels to
ensure adequate checks and balances; and

(i)  Rules and guidelines are set to control treasury activities, financial

and management reporting, human resources functions and
computer systems’ operations.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes the following
elements:

(i) identify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business;

(i)  develop necessary measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such
risks; and

(i) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the core
operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, business and
operational units assess and identify their potential risks which may
impact on their ability to achieve their business objectives and/or those of
the Group. The head of each unit has to complete relevant risk and
control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm to the CEO that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have been
established and properly complied with. CEO conducts review of the
effectiveness of risk management annually and presents report to the
Audit Committee after review.

In addition, the Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems through a programme of
internal audit. The internal audit department is set up by the Company to
review the major operational and financial control of the Group in
compliance with the established processes and standards on a
continuing basis and aims to cover all major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis. The internal audit department reports directly to the
Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
examines the internal audit department’s review and opinions about
operational effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
reports to the Board.

During 2016, based on the internal audit report and the risk management
report presented by internal audit department and CEO respectively, the
Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas of concern
that would have a material impact on the Group’s financial position or
results of operations and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be generally effective and adequate including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

AEBENRRERERBEATHLD

)  BAAREBREBRROERNER R EZEERR
HASBEEBNZE

i)  BIEFEIRLSHEBZERRAOEGIER &

(iy EERMBEFBBEEEHBERE -

AEBEDIEERBREEARBAEENZOEETR
EB L EAPIEN G RENE AT EEERA
G/ RAEEEELA RN NNBEENRRE - BB
TEAARARAREAMEZENBRFERS XA
REERCHET RZEETEENAERBRRER
REASFHRREREGMITETHHENFHRIER

WERBEZZBE -

O EE B BAREREFERE Mes R aREsE
EGRBRARER - ARRRIABE A ER
HERUAEE T ELBRPBEES > REENERE
EREARBE BT RLE  NMEFFERAES
EIFRNRECLZBCER MEXZESRIEMAE
SR AREAREERREEREN R EREER
WREEGEHER -

R2016%F » RBABME B REED BIRZ NN R
BELRRBREERS BERZEEREFTHEERT
AREREENM BN SR EREERNEATEMNT
ZINEINEIER > TRRREREE N AR R
MEARLAKY - BEEST - ABESF LU BER
BETHERHANER ETEERKER URBREH
B THIRIENTEE -

25



The Company has established policy to ensure that inside information is
disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. Access to inside information is at all
times confined to relevant senior management executed on “as needed”
basis, until proper disclosure or dissemination of inside information is
made in accordance with applicable laws and regulation. Relevant
personnel and other professional parties involved are reminded to
preserve confidentiality of the inside information until it is publicly
disclosed.

The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for individual
department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
the management include the preparation of interim and annual reports
and announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have been posted on the
Company’s website.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2016, the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Pan
Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony as the
committee’s members. The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference
are summarized as follows:

(1)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skill,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(2)  to nominate for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and where they arise;

(8)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members

and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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(4) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(5)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

During the year 2016, the Nomination Committee had four meetings to
review the independence of independent Non-executive director, the
renewal of Directors’ service contract and to recommend the
appointment of CEO.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2016, the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) had Mr. Pan Xue Tian, an Independent
Non-executive Director, as the committee’s chairman, Ms. Li Kei Ling,
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky
and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony, as the committee’s members. The
Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as
follows:

(i) to recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure of
all Directors and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i)  to determine with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment;

(iv)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(v)  to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved in
deciding her/his own remuneration;

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees. In
order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons, the
Company has adopted share option scheme to reward those participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
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The Board considers that the executive directors of the Company and
the CEO are the key management of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the aggregate emoluments payable to directors and
chief executive officer were within the following bands:

BEECRAARARRNTESRBHYAREEETEER
AB - HE-Z—RE+-A=+—HIFE ENE
BERBEZFHBN TUATHE

Number of individuals

AB
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z & 4% 1,000,000 7T 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 781,000,001 7T & 2,000,000 7T, 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 &% 2,000,001 7T & 3,000,000 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 & # 3,000,001 7T % 4,000,000 7T, -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 Y& 4,000,001 7T % 5,000,000 7T, -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 75# 5,000,001 7T 6,000,000 7T 1

Details of the amount of Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 7 to the financial statements and the
details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee had five meetings in 2016 to determine
the salary adjustment of senior management and the salary of newly
appointed CEO and recommendation to the Board the adjustment of
Non-executive Director’s fee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) which
was established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who among
themselves possess a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession, commercial and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2016 the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr. Choi
Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony were the
committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are
summarized as follows:

(i) to consider and recommend to the board the independence,
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(i)  to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and to deal with any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

(iiy  to review financial information; and

(iv)  to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control system.
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During the year 2016, the Audit Committee had three meetings, two or
which were with external auditors without executive directors present.
The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2016 is summarized below:

(1) reviewed the external auditors’ independence, the terms of
engagement and approved the remuneration of the external
auditors;

(2) reviewed the annual audit plan of the external auditors and
discussed with them about the nature and scope of the audit;

(8) reviewed the Group’s interim financial information and annual
financial statements, before submission to the Board, discussed
the financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during the
audits, including but not limited to the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices, and on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements;

(4)  reviewed internal audit report and annual audit plan of the internal
audit department and the effectiveness of internal audit function;

(5) reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and their effectiveness.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before
recommending them to the Board for approval.

Ernst and Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the AGM on 20 May 2016 until the conclusion of the next
AGM. During the year 2016, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of services provided are as
follows:

Fees for audit services amounted to RMB1,388,000.

Fees for non-audit services amounted to approximately RMB71,000.

Ms. Pang Kit Ling, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Group. During the year, the company secretary of the

Company had duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting
following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication of
annual and interim reports and press release. Our corporate website
which contains corporate information, corporate governance practice,
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company enables the Company’s shareholders to have timely and
updated information of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board attends the
AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees or in the absence of
the chairman of such committees, another member of the committees to
be available to answer questions at the AGM. The Chairman proposes
separate resolutions for each issue to be considered, including the
election of Directors, and put each proposed resolution to the vote by
way of a poll. Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the
day of AGM.
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Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 68, is an Executive Director and Chairman of the
Company. Ms. Li is one of the founders of the Group. She founded the
Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October
2002. She was also the chief executive officer of the Company from 1
March 2015 to 17 April 2016. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of Dawnrays
International Co. Ltd., Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (B ¥m BB () E
R A \]), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. She is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Li has over twenty years of experience in corporate
management, strategic planning, business operations and finance, in
particular for pharmaceutical enterprises in the PRC. She is responsible
for supervising the strategic management decisions to ensure good
corporate governance practices and business policies are established,
and executing the overall developmental strategies of the Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 72, is an Executive Director of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded the Group in
December 1995 and was appointed to the Board in October 2002. Mr.
Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays International Co. Ltd.,
Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Ltd., Dawnrays International Co.
Ltd. (3R Im BB I 15 B BR A 7)), Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd., Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays
Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Hung holds a degree from I /& & % 2 ft (Shanghai Conservatory of
Music). He has over twenty years of experience in corporate management
and corporate development, and has participated in founding and
managing of pharmaceutical and high-tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an
executive director and the chairman of Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LI, Tung Ming, aged 68, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2000 and was appointed to the Board in
January 2004. Mr. Li also holds directorship in Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Ltd., Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has over twenty
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, and began
his career in product development, promotion, sales and corporate
management in the pharmaceutical market in the PRC in 1980. Mr. Li is
responsible for liaison with the Group’s academic network of medical
experts and academic advisers and assists in new product development
of the Group.

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 42, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in
November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in knitting
machinery since 1993. He has over 10 years experience in sales and
management and also over 10 years experience in finance and property
investments. In recent years, Mr. Leung has strived to exploit business in
hi-tech agriculture and arts and cultural industries. Mr. Leung currently is
the shareholder and the director of Toyo International Investment Ltd., of
which has been one of the substantial shareholders (as required to be
disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the
Company since September 2005.

Mr. EDE, Ronald Hao Xi, aged 58, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board in June
2015. Mr. Ede has extensive experience in financial and business
management in multinational companies. During the period of September
2006 and 3 March 2016, Mr. Ede was an independent director, a
member of audit committee and transactions committee of Mindray
Medical International Ltd., a company delisted from NYSE on 4 March
2016 due to privatization. Mr. Ede obtained his Bachelor degree in
Business Administration from The University of Hawaii and a Master of
Business Administration degree from The University of Washington.

Mr. PAN, Xue Tian, aged 80, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan joined the Group in June 20083. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan has
extensive experience in drug administration and supervision, medical
hygiene and hospital management. Mr. Pan once held various senior
management positions in the Ministry of Health of the PRC. He graduated
from the medicine faculty of A B K& % £ (Dalian Medical University
of the PRC).
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Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 48, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Choi joined the Group in September 2004.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company respectively. Mr. Choi has extensive experience in financial and
treasury management, corporate finance, investment and audit. He
earned his Bachelor degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong
Baptist University with a first class honours in 1990. Mr. Choi is a
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. LO, Tung Sing Tony, aged 48, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in October 2010. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company respectively. Mr. Lo has
extensive experience in financial management and business development
in Hong Kong and multinational companies. He obtained his Bachelor
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Master of Science in Financial Management from The
University of London. Mr. Lo is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a full member of CPA
Australia. He currently holds the position of the Head of Corporate
Financial Control at The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. CHEN, Shaojun, aged 39, is the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Chen has been appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company from 18 April 2016 to take charge of daily business
operations of the Group. He joined sales and marketing department of
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, in August 2002 as area manager and was responsible for
developing area market of the Group’s new specific medicines and
managing sales business. He was appointed as executive vice president
of the Company in December 2014. Mr. Chen has long specialized in
sales promotion, network building, brand upgrading, planning and
managing of business development in China pharmaceutical market. He
also served corporate senior management position. He has accumulated
almost twenty years of rich successful experience in respect of
pharmaceutical sales and marketing and corporate development and
management.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report and the
audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
audited financial statements on pages 56 to 137.

An interim dividend of HK$0.03 per ordinary share was paid on 28
September 2016. The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share in respect of the year, to
shareholders on the register of members on 31 May 2017. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position.

Review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2016
are presented in “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5 to 7 and pages 9 to 11 respectively. The
“Financial Review” on pages 12 to 15 also includes an analysis of the
Group’s financial key performance indicators during the year. Future
developments in the Group’s business are disclosed in “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 7 to 8.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Report of the Directors.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 22 February 2017, the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Ltd. invested joint venture, AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.,
was officially established and obtained the business license.
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Details about the Group’s financial risk management objectives and
policies are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements. The following
risks and uncertainties may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to pharmaceutical sector and
some are from external sources.

(1

2

(3)

DRUG APPROVAL PROCESS IN RELATION TO
PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The actual timing of the market launch of products under
development could vary significantly from the Group’s estimates
due to a number of factors including delays or failures in pre-clinical
studies or clinical trials, the lengthy approval process and the
uncertainties in the outcome of regulatory approval process. If any
of the necessary approvals in relation to products under
development is delayed or not obtained, this could adversely affect
the timing of the market launch of the products. The Group is
committed to investing in research and development of new drugs
in order to ensure a rich product pipeline.

TENDER AND PRICE CONTROL

In each province where the Group markets products, the Group
have to participate in a government-led tender process every year
or every few years. In the event that the Group fails to win the
tender in a provincial tender process, the sale of the Group’s
products to public hospitals in such province will be prohibited and
the Group will lose market share in such province. In addition,
certain new methods have been recently adopted in the provincial
tender process, which may exert further downward pressure
against the price of pharmaceutical products and the Group’s
market share, revenue and profitability may be adversely affected.
The Group has a team of staff monitoring and handling the drug
tenders with the objective of winning the tenders for the Group’s
products at a desirable price level.

HEALTHCARE REFORM IN CHINA

The healthcare system in the PRC is undergoing a crucial reform
period, where laws, regulations and policies in effect governing the
medical, healthcare and pharmaceutical industry are constantly
evolving. New policies implementation may have material effects to
the Group. It may also incur significant costs, divert the resources
and attention of the management and thus leading to more
uncertainties and risks in respect of the Group’s business and
operation.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Board is well aware of the importance of environmental protection on
the Group’s sustainability and stable development. The Group strives to
improve product quality while achieving the best balance between cost
control and environmental protection, devotes to be a resource-saving
and environment-friendly enterprise with low energy and resources
consumption and low level of discharge on wastages. The Group has
established an environmental management system to promote clean
production, to reduce pollution and to reduce the risk of environmental
accidents. The Group also evaluates environmental and social risks of its
suppliers on a regular basis to ensure the safety of its supply chains.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
announced on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Company’s website within three months after the publication of the
annual report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the directors and management are aware, for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.
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(1

()

(3)

(4)

EMPLOYEES

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The staff and remuneration policy
are presented in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page
15.

SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a supplier management system to
handpick suppliers through a screening and evaluation process
based on quality and price. Furthermore, the Group also carries out
field audit on its suppliers when necessary, with a view to make
endeavor to ensure its suppliers are equipped to provide
guarantees on quality, as well as safety and other environmental
issues that require managerial skills. Such audit cover a number of
areas, including productivity, technical standards, quality
assurance, supply capability, as well as safety and environmental
management credentials.

DISTRIBUTORS

The Group sells some of products to customers through third-party
distributors. The Group works closely with distributors to ensure
that the Group shares the view for upholding brand value and
customer services, specifically focusing on attracting and retaining
customers in order to drive sales growth. The Group also requires
distributors to comply with the Group’s policies and promotional
activities standards. The Group also monitors the financial condition
and repayment history of distributors.

CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
constantly endeavours to deliver quality products and services to
its customers. The Group also directs dedicated efforts to deal with
complaints about relevant products and has established relevant
processes to handle complaints. In addition the Group has
assigned staff to investigate customers’ complaint cases and
provide timely feedbacks in order to safeguard customers’ benefits.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 30 of the annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees.
Other fringe benefits, including defined contribution retirement schemes,
share option scheme and medical cover are also provided.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the year are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial
statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 138. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

DONATION
During the year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to

RMB65,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND
USE RIGHTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use
rights of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in notes
13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
Details of interest-bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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During the year, the Company repurchased 4,356,000 shares of the
Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HKD22,103,160 before expenses. The repurchases
were effected by the Directors for the enhancement of shareholder value
in the long term. The repurchased shares, of which 3,536,000 shares
were cancelled in 2016 and the remaining 820,000 shares were
cancelled on 26 January 2017. The monthly breakdown of shares
repurchased during the year was as follows:

F R - AN E AL R BT A8 [E1 4,356,000 IR AN A B _E T RE
% ReTHMEBR 2 RRE /B 22,103,160 7T + 7
CEEEEARARERENEMEDL - BRMBKRMDE
7 3,536,000 R B = Z — N F NS - % 820,000 %
ER-ZZE—+tF—A-+"AF#E RFRAFABEK
Mz FEE LT

The highest price The lowest price Aggregate
Number of Shares paid per share paid per share consideration paid
Month of Repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$S) (HK$)
BRENESER BRENHEER BRE
L AEDZR BERGOEE (B (&) (Bx)
January 2016
—E-RF—AhHm 760,000 5.24 4.84 3,829,360
February 2016
—E-R"FZAM 1,680,000 5.39 4.97 8,649,600
August 2016
—E-RFNAH 944,000 5.37 5.07 5,005,080
September 2016
—E-R"FNAHL 152,000 5.40 5.36 817,840
December 2016
ZE-AF+ZAM 820,000 4.70 4.40 3,801,280
Total 5t 4,356,000 22,103,160

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
and note 30 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2016 the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB281,148,000, of which RMB71,082,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company of approximately
RMB60,281,000 as at 31 December 2016 is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 21.63% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 6.00%. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 22.56% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 8.26%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai

Mr. Li Tung Ming

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Hong Man
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Pan Xue Tian

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles”), Ms. Li Kei Ling, Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Lo Tung
Sing Tony will retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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The Board considers the executive directors of the Company and the
CEOQ are the key management of the Group.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the CEO are set
out on pages 31 to 33 of the annual report.

Ms. Li Kei Ling entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li's service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced on 1
July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years.
Her appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently entitled to director’s
fee and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$1,162,800 per
year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr. Hung’s
service contract was renewed for a term of three years which
commenced on 1 July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive
terms of three years. His appointment is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than three months’ written notice. Mr. Hung is
currently entitled to director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group
totally HK$742,800 per year.

Mr. Li Tung Ming entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 14 January 2004. Mr. Li’s
service contract was renewed on 1 January 2007 for a term of three
years and will continue thereafter for successive terms of three years. His
appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice. Mr. Li is currently entitled to director’s fee
and other remuneration from the Group totally HK$742,800 per year.

Mr. Leung Hong Man entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November 2005 and will
continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Leung is
currently entitled to a basic annual remuneration of HK$180,000. Mr.
Ede, Ronald Hao Xi entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of two years which commenced on 15 June 2015. Mr. Ede is
currently entitled to a basic annual remuneration of HK$216,000. Mr.
Leung and Mr. Ede’s appointments are subject to termination by either
party giving not less than one month’s written notice. Save for the above
directors’ fees, Mr. Leung and Mr. Ede are not entitled to any other
remuneration.
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Mr. Pan Xue Tian entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003 and will continue
thereafter for successive terms of two years. Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
which commenced on 30 September 2004 and will continue thereafter
for successive terms of two years. Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years which
commenced on 1 October 2010 and will continue thereafter for
successive terms of two years. Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo’s
appointments are subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s written notice. Each of Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo is
currently entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$216,000. Save for the
above directors’ fees, the three Independent Non-executive Directors are
not entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There is no contract
of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

In the opinion of the Directors, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and any of their respective close associates
has engaged in any businesses that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during the year under review which
are required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses
and liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
and/or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers and/or
otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers or offices,
to the extent as permitted by laws.

The Company has acquired insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities which provides certain indemnities against liabilities
incurred in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against
Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto.

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year or
subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 June 2003 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”) was expired on 20 June 2013. All other
respects of the provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and holders of all options granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the
outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, on 24 May 2013, the
shareholders of the Company approved at the annual general meeting a
new share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”), and took
effect immediately on 21 June 2013, which was after the expiry of the
2003 Share Option Scheme. The principal terms of the 2013 Share
Option Scheme and the 2003 Share Option Scheme are similar and are
collectively referred to as the “Scheme”. The detailed disclosures relating
to the Scheme including the purposes and the eligible participants of the
Scheme and valuation of options are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements. The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 79,478,400 shares which representing approximately 9.91%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this annual
report.
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Movements of Company’s share options under the Scheme during the  RER - ZEIPHARAFBEREZ ST ¢
year were as follows:

Number of share options
BREHE
Closing
price of the
Company’s
shares at
immediate
date before
Date of grant of Exercise period of Exercise  the grant (c)
Granted Exercised Lapsed At share options (a) share options price 28
At1 January during during during 31 December (dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) ofshare  RLEHRE
2016 the year the year the year 2016 RibgkE BRE  options(h) H-XKAT
Name or Category $H£%H  R-F-xE ER ER B RZB-RE Af(a) eSS e B
of participant HEH -A-A [B5d B B4%d) TZA=1-H (8/ B/ &) (B/ R/ %) ﬁﬁﬁ% E#ﬁ%
Chief Executive 4% e)
Officer (e)
Mr.ChenShaon ~ RAERE 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 08/01/15 08/01/16-07/01/21 515 497
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18/03/15 18/03/16-17/03/21 521 515
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 16/04/15 16/04/16-15/04/21 7.34 717
8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Other employees ~ HftES
In aggregate izt 1,764,000 - (440,000) - 1,324,000 25/03/11 26/03/12-24/03117 313 314
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 17/09/14 17/09/15-16/09/20 6.44 6.07
3,000,000 - (100,000 - 2,900,000 08/01/15 08/01/16-07/01/21 515 497
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 16/04/15 16/04/16-15/04/21 7.34 717
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 2311115 2311116-22111/21 6.38 6.37
- 1,800,000 - (300,000 1,500,000 11/05/16 11/06/17-10/05/22 6.34 6.29
- 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 08/09/16 08/09/17-07/09/22 566 5.56
11,164,000 3,000,000 (540,000 (300,000 13,324,000
19,164,000 3,000,000 (540,000 - 21,324,000

(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the (@ BRENSFBHARD ARETERRAB AL -
commencement of the exercise period.

(o) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or (b) AT AR S BATAL AR S AR R R AR AR BR E b SR LU &) - RIBE AR
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. HERITEBAT AR -

(©) The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate date before the grant of () RETFEREN —AABRENEAQRROERAREER THRE
the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately BRI AR5 BB RFTRTE -

prior to the date of grant of the options.

(@ Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due to resignation of  (d) HNME B EHERTS - AR IR ST B &R T LAKRL
employees.

() Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed as chief executive officer of the Company on 18 April € RBELXER T —ANFENATN\BEEEEEAQBEAE -
2016.
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The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised over all of the exercise of options within the
disclosure line. The weighted average closing price of Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised by
employees was HK$5.52. No options granted under 2003 Share Option
Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme were cancelled during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

REZBRAEITE BT REN R QR RO ERSBD
REEREERI A RBRETTE R B — BB
Bt BRI F a8 - Hih g 8 BT A BAER
ERTEAN— A ZMEFERDETEREERTH

ARD « RFER - LETHEMNRE

—EE=

==

AR

R =T BT SR 2 AR E -

RZZE-—RE+ZA=+—H BFREFNERFL
HEOEE (EE R B 5 LS ERN([E 5 R REE )

SEXVER) BB - HH AR

BEHF - BALENRAR

BIRBES KBGO E 26 FENELM - RIE
EFRARERETEFRIINRETRRMEARF R

sz =

g 25X

PrevfEss FOR RSN

RARAEBRTFNGA

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FENROEE  SORESME

Directly

beneficially Share Option
Name Notes owned granted
=1 k=3 ERERES ERRNBRE
Directors
BE=x
Ms. Li Kei Ling (a) 49,088,000 -
FHBW T
Mr. Hung Yung Lai (a) 312,000 -
RRRELIS oA
Mr. Li Tung Ming (b) 112,000 -
FRAXE
Mr. Leung Hong Man (c) - -
RER%E
Chief Executive Officer
B
Mr. Chen Shaojun (d) 1,396,000 8,000,000
BRAZE So 4

Through
controlled
corporation
BIBESIAR
BE
294,072,000
294,072,000

40,000,000

49,400,000

Total

343,160,000

294,384,000

40,112,000

49,400,000

9,396,000

Percentage of
the Company’s

issued share
capital

EARDT BT

RENED L

42.80

36.71

5.00

6.16
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated
corporation:

Name of
associated Relationship
Name of Director corporation with the Company
EEER RBCEE SR b NN 0] REA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Fortune United the Company’s
THB T Group Limited holding company
RNARRIERA A
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Fortune United the Company’s
ARRIFE S A Group Limited holding company
RABIER AR

Notes:

(a) 294,072,000 shares of the Company are held by Fortune United Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart Enterprises Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick International Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are each beneficially interested in 50% of the
share capital of Fortune United Group Limited.

(b) 40,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Time Lead Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of
Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Tung Ming.

(c) 49,400,000 shares of the Company are held by Toyo International Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Leung Yiu Sing
are each beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Toyo International
Investment Limited.

(d) 1,396,000 shares of the Company are directly beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Shaojun
and 8,000,000 underlying shares are the share options granted to him under the share
option scheme of the Company. Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the shares
which will be issued to him upon his exercise of options, representing approximately
0.998% of the Company’s issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive Officer had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”, “Directors’
and Chief Executive Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 29 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

As at 31 December 2016, the following interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name Notes Nature of interest
=18 Mzt REEME
Fortune United Group Limited (@) Directly beneficially owned
BERERHE
Keysmart Enterprises Limited (@) Through controlled
corporation
BEBESAREE
Hunwick International Limited () Through controlled
corporation
RIBIESIA RS
Mdm. lu Pun (b) Family interest
st XEER
Toyo International Investment (c) Directly beneficially owned
Limited EREREAR
REBERKRERGRAT
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (d) Family interest
mEWL T EN L 3
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (c) & (e) Through controlled
PREK ST E corporation
bbbt NSIES Y <]

BRpS bt [BAHERT &I — &5 - [EERAENERD XA
BRI R MR R | — 81 R ISR S 20 P&t B Ak
HABEENEEN  FAALBEMNES  BRENELS
SR 18 BRH) F X AL E BB A R B R A
77/21451@%%\ BRI - REFITEEIZFERN A
NE - HERARSREAMKNE QR LEFZHE - A
SEENRBIMNEMEABRBEREN -

RZB-—REF+ZA=+—H REZHFLATGOHE
336 {677 $ Tﬁﬁm*’g/\\l(uaﬁiuaﬁ E/\\$ A
f&1n RABRER D B sk B &SN AT ¢

D

Approximate
percentage to
the total number
of shares of the

Number of Company (%) Long position/
Shares held {5 AT ERIT short position
BENROHEE BEANESLE #FR KA
294,072,000 36.67 Long position
HE
294,072,000 36.67 Long position
"R
294,072,000 36.67 Long position
"R
294,384,000 36.71 Long position
HE
49,400,000 6.16  Long position
HE
49,400,000 6.16  Long position
HE
51,500,000 6.42 Long position

WA

47



Name

=1

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong ()
KEF LT

UBS Group AG

Notes:
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Nature of interest

BEME

Family interest
KRB

(e) Through controlled
corporation

b et UNCIES o]

Person having a security
interest in shares
RO A RIEERDA
(@  Through controlled
corporation
BBEHIARRHE
(h) Through controlled
corporation
BBEHIA RS

The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially owned by
Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International Limited which are in turn,
respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Executive
Directors of the Company.

Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally beneficially
owned by Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director of the Company and his
father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

2,100,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and Mdm. Chu
Shuet Fong, his wife, are each beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital
of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Limited.

Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice of UBS Group AG filed for
the relevant event dated 15 December 2016 as shown on the website of the Stock
Exchange, UBS AG, UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited, UBS Asset
Management (Singapore) Ltd., UBS Asset Management Trust Company, UBS Fund
Management (Luxembourg) S.A. and UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG are
directly interested in 1,792,200 shares, 10,348,000 shares, 1,596,000 shares, 24,000
shares, 30,150,000 shares and 8,000 shares respectively. Since they are all controlled
by UBS Group AG, UBS Group AG is deemed to be interested in 45,246,200 shares
for the purpose of the SFO.

Number of
Shares held
BEEHNRAEE

49,400,000

43,918,200

Approximate
percentage to
the total number
of shares of the
Company (%)
HIER AT S BT
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HE
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HR
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"R
0.22

1,792,000 Short position
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() According to the corporate substantial shareholder notice of UBS Group AG filed for
the relevant event dated 15 December 2016 as shown on the website of the Stock
Exchange, UBS AG, directly holds a short position in 1,792,000 shares. Since UBS AG
is controlled by UBS Group AG, UBS Group AG is deemed to hold a short position in
1,792,000 shares for the purpose of the SFO. Pursuant to the same notice, UBS
Group AG is deemed to hold a short position in 1,392,000 shares through the holding
of certain unlisted cash-settled equity derivatives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive
Officer’s interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 56 to 137, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

MRBAFRISB/ERMNBEHE  RAEAHRESE
MHEBERNOBIARAEENTR - ZREFHSEHER
REMBMRETET ROARRNE R NETRERN
BRMTEHZFFTREREBNERL - RAIY TS
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BEXREREARNFEMROESF -  BARTFNERERE
BENTERENREF @ AEMSMEH OGRS MEREE
BRERT BRI AR -

financial statements.

Key audit matter

BRETEER

Impairment testing of Property, plant and equipment
(“PPE”) and Construction in progress (“CIP”)

¥ BERZEHE(Y¥ BERIRFE)REEZIR(EZE
T7#)mER=

As at 31 December 2016, the Group reported PPE and CIP of
RMB566.3 million and RMB5.8 million, respectively. There is a
risk of impairment of the Group’s PPE and CIP particularly in
the intermediates and bulk medicines segment as this segment
reported losses in recent years. For this reason, the non-
current assets in the manufacture and sale of intermediates
and bulk medicines segment were subject to an impairment
test. Value-in-use models were used to assess the risk of
impairment and based on estimates including future sales,
gross margins, operating costs, the discount rate and the
assumptions inherent in those estimates. We focused on this
area because of the inherent judgement involved in the
impairment testing and the magnitude of the assets under
consideration.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANESTNNEERRETSH

As a result, our audit procedures included an assessment of the
assumptions and methods used by the Group. In doing so, we
involved our own valuation experts. We assessed the
assumptions adopted by the Group which included the discount
rate, the expected trend in turnover, the gross margins, and the
operating costs. We paid attention to the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results by comparing
the forecasts with the historical performance of the respective
CGU and the business development plan.
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Key audit matter

BARETEER

The Group’s disclosures about impairment test of PPE and
CIP are included in note 2.4 summary of significant accounting
policies — Impairment of non-financial assets, note 2.5
significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
— Impairment of non-financial assets, note 13 Property, plant
and equipment and note 15 Construction in progress to the
financial statements.

EEEEEYME - BE RE R R IR E R A%
BEMBRUBRRWT2AETESHERME - MisFo5E
EEtHIE - A REBR M BEERME - W13 -
R I s e SR T s 15 FEFE AR A o

Provision for inventories

FRRE

The Group reported inventories of RMB124.7 million as at 31
December 2016. The Group had exposure to the impairment
risks of inventories arising from certain obsolete, slow-moving
and due to expiration. We focused on this area because
inventories were material to the Group as at 31 December
2016 and the determination of the impairment provision for
inventories involved a high level of management’s judgement
and estimates in future sales and technique innovation.
RZZE-—RE+_A=+—0 EEEAHEER/RARE
124788 ESEEGFERBR  FiHKBEmESES
FERERR - HMEAINE  BEEAA EXER_T—X
FH_A=T—ANGEEBEAXN  BREGRERBEIRER
BT R R B B R sl 2 e 1l K A

The Group’s disclosures about provision for inventories are
contained in note 2.4 summary of significant accounting
policies — Inventories, note 2.5 significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions — Net realisable
value of inventories, note 6 Profit before tax and note 17
Inventories to the financial statements.
EXBRATEERENREENENMBRENT2.4FE
ZEHHREME-—TFE  ME25xZ25 A6 - A5t kR
H—ABEFEFE  WEe RSN RME17FER -

52

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANETNNEERRETSHE

We evaluated the inventory impairment assessments made by
management, including expected selling prices and expiration
dates of the related inventories, and the Group’s future plan of
usage or sale. We assessed the aging reports of pharmaceutical
products, by tracing the production dates back to the product
release reports. We checked the condition of inventories by
physical inspection on a sample basis. Furthermore, we
checked the regulation updates to identify if there were any
potential indicators of impairment.
BAFHEE R ERF T ERERRE R - BEEREERN
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Chee Kong.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —E— NF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

L'ON

HERA

EF

H A R Wz
HERDHER
THEH

Hip &M
M5B R

BBt A1 2

REEEF
AT &R

[SYNCIEZS PN

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B QA TZBEREREEA

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE PARENT

Basic, for profit for the year

Diluted, for profit for the year
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EhEERER

AR UARERENFE
B UARFERNFE

2016

—E—-RE

Notes RMB’000
BaE ARE TR

4 824,351
(312,872)

511,479

4 24,425
(98,895)
(64,625)
(38,928)
5 (157)

6 333,299
10 (67,382)

265,917

265,917

12

RMBO0.3314
RMBO0.3312

2015
—ET—hEF
RMB’000
AREFT

985,000
(415,612)

569,388

31,481
(94,471)
(74,940)
(62,745)

(1,524)

377,189

(74,991)

302,198

302,198

RMBO0.3758
RMBO0.3747



PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

25 B
SAf EIRS S B DS B R
H i 2 (B518) -

36 240
REEBRBE
Hit 2 (R58) 85

FEERREZE
Wz EE
AT B IRREAG
SREHEEA

2016
—E—-RE
RMB’000
ARE TR

265,917

4,373

4,373

270,290

270,290

2015
—ET—hEF
RMB’000
AREFT

302,198

(1,343)

(1,343)

300,855

300,855
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31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Equity investments at fair value through

profit or loss
Cash and bank

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Government grants
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Reserves

Total equity

LI Kei Ling
FH®
Director

EF
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HUNG Yung Lai

RERLE
Director

EF

Notes

B &

13
14
15
16
26

17
18
19

20
21

22
23
24

25
26

27
28
30

2016

e
RMB’000
ARBFT

566,321
40,175
5,776
24,909
6,729

643,910

124,746
225,660
220,958

7,794
663,296

1,242,454

87,938
98,104
9,104
5,510

200,656

1,041,798

1,685,708

2,248
46,704

48,952

1,636,756

84,952
(74)
1,551,878

1,636,756

2015
—ZT—RHF
RMB’000
AREFIT

597,233
41,216
4,304
18,629
9,131

670,513

147,747
282,173
13,830

3,683
685,790

1,133,223

143,128
114,400
8,847
18,050

284,425
848,798

1,519,311

2,683
42,752

45,435

1,473,876

85,206

1,388,670

1,473,876



consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEREmE

Year ended 31 December 2016 E =T — "F+_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SINGEZIN T
Share Capital Share Statutory Exchange
Issued Treasury premium redemption option  Contributed surplus  fluctuation Retained Total
capital shares account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits equity

BRRK EERH BfaE B BERE  BRERE SABE EEBHORE EXRDRE REER ERhE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

it AR®TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRTR

(note 27) (note 28) (note 29) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30)
(Hstan) (Hfzt28) (Hit29) (H¥3t30) (Hfzk30) (H&t30)

At 1 January 2016 R=E-7"¥-A-H 85,206 - 76,861 3,025 13,334 100,175 190,362 (10,419) 1,015,312 1,473,876
Profit for the year REREH - - - - - - - - %5917 %5917
Other comprehensive income for the year: A [ £ i 2

Exchange differences EfZE - - - - - - - 4313 - 4313
Total comprehensive income for the year A% F 2 E#4E - - - - - - - 4318 265,017 270,290
Exercise of share options EBRE 29 47 - 2,122 - (537) - - - - 1,632
Find 2015 dividend declared BE-F-RERERS - - - - - - - - (80,648) (80,648)
Dividend on shares issued for “Z2-Rf+-A=1-A

employee share options exercised BhENESERERRT

after 31 December 2015 RipmRE - - - - - - - - () @
Shares repurchased and cancelled AR TR REEH 2a (301) - (15,349) 301 - - - - (301) (15,650)
Shares repurchased and subsequently B ARIR{ REstits

cancelled 28 - (14) (3,353) 74 - - - - (14) (3,427)
Equity-setfled share option WRES [ RER A

arrangements 29 - - - - 11,423 - - - - 11,423
Inerim 2016 divicend e S 1t - - - - - - - - (20.735) (20,735)
Transfer from retained profts BRBAHRER - - - - - - m - (81,177) -
At 31 December 2016 RoE-~E+-R=1+-H 84,952 (14) 60,281* 3,400 24,220* 100,175* 221,559 (6,046)* 1,148,289* 1,636,756
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB1,551,878,000 * EREEEXARKA1,551,878000 (=T —HE: AR

(2015: RMB1,388,670,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1,388,670,00070) k4R & A TSRk LMV REESEE -
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeERaEEnE

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T— A F+-_A=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEA AR ER
Share Capital Share Statutory Exchange Proposed
Issued premium redemption option  Contributed surplus fluctuation Retained final Total
capital account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits dividend equity
EERH%

BRIRA RiEE EXEERE  EREEE HARH Mg ERRBEE REEH  RERBRS BREE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(note 27) (note 29) (note 30) (note 30) (note 30)

(Htiter) (H29) (Htits0) (H£30) (Hf£30)
At 1 January 2015 RZF-1%5-A-R 85,348 84,050 2,715 6,540 100,175 175,316 (9,076) 748,515 54,697 1,248,280
Profit for the year RER R = - - - - - - 302,198 = 302,198

Other comprehensive loss for the year:  AEEEM2THA :

Exchange differences ERZE = = = - - - (1,343) - - (1,349
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE 2 BN LS - - - - - - (1,343) 302,198 - 300,855
Exercise of share options fiekE 29 168 8354 - (217 - - - - - 6,350
Final 2014 dividend declared ER-F-MERHRS = = = = = = = = (54,697) (54,697)
Dividend on shares issued for “Z2-PmE+-A=1-H

employee share options exercised A TEMES BRI

after 31 December 2014 RiA0RE = = = = = = = (] - *)
Shares repurchased BEARRG a (310) (16,543) 310 = - - = (310) = 15,859)
Equity-settied share option MRES e BRER

arangements 29 - - - 8,966 - - - - - 8,966
Interim 2015 dividend “T-nEERe 11 - - - - - - - (19,980) - (19,980)
Transferfrom retaned profs BRBENmER - - - - - 15,066 - (15,066) - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RET=A=1-A 85,200 76,861 3,025 13,334 100,175 190,382 (10419 1,015,312 - 1473876
60  DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED » H3580%5 (/%) AR A7)



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Recognition of land use rights
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value (gains)/losses, net:
Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity-settled share option expense
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
notes receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments

(Increase)/decrease in deposits and
other receivables

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

(Decrease)/increase in trade and
notes payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables
and accruals

Decrease in government grants

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z— "F+_A=+—HIEFE

Notes
B aE
RETHHRERE
B 5 AT A
HTHFAE -
7% & A 5
A BEHA 4
BERBHUWARBEYIERZ
&R B R IR B A 4
HEWE - WEMEHIER
o) g 6
e 6
| A EEH 16
T b RRETER 6
HESEBEZUAREYE
2 RERER W 6

~AEMKkE) BE - FE
BBBREARETIR
ZBHERE 6

AR 4 R AR 2 °
SR E T R TR

6
¥ - BB - B

13

FERL,(42m)
FEWE 5 MR IEFKIA
B, (i)
R (), R
mE M AR UWRIA
(#81m),/ B
BRI IRITIFRORD
BN E 5 MEEFIA
CRiA>), /4
His AR ERERN

CRiA>), /4
BT R R0R
EAREH

RETHELENREREFR

2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARE TR

333,299

157
(13,185)

(367)
36
51,988
828
1,041
(101)
(402)
11,423

8,087

755

393,559
14,914

56,513
(708)

(323)
10

(55,190)
(14,514)

(435)
(73,568)

320,258

2015
—ET-hF
RMB’000
AREFTT

377,189

1,524
(21,890)

(159)
222
53,250
864
1,041
(168)
594

8,966

15,800

437,233
(75,966)

(82,111)
4,206

410
40

35,743
42,939

(792)
(63,380)

208,322
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Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —E— NF+_A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividend income from equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in term deposits with
maturity over three months

Purchase of structured deposits

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
and construction in progress

Purchases of intangible assets

Purchases of equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options

Repurchase of shares

Proceeds from bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Release of bank deposits pledged
for bank loans

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Short-term deposits
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Be RRITHET
REIRTTIF K

2016

—E—RE
Notes RMB’000
B 5T ARE TR

17,088

4 367
455

452

122,500
(210,000)

(25,433)
16 (7,108)

(4,060)

(105,739)

1,633
(16,960)
17,992
(18,391)
5 (157)
(101,388)

(117,271)

97,248

563,280
2,768

663,296

129,407
533,889

663,296

2015
—ET-hF
RMB’000
AREFTT

21,248
159

53

4,128
(122,500)

(42,812)
(3,679)

2,797)

(146,200)

6,350
(15,853)
25,127
(212,993)
(1,524)
(74,722)

235,631
(37,984)

114,138

443,366
5,776

563,280

64,632
498,648

563,280



Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002 under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is
located at Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 2008 to rationalise
the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to which the
Company became the holding company of the Group (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2008.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
development, manufacture and sale of non-patented
pharmaceutical medicines including intermediate pharmaceuticals,
bulk medicines and finished drugs. In the opinion of the directors,
Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8
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INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name
NGRS

Directly held
EEEFR

Dawnrays International
Company Limited
RIn B AR A A

Dawnrays Biotechnology
Capital (Asia) Limited
RinEWRE R (M)

BRAE]

Indirectly held
EEFE

Dawnrays International
Company Limited
RinBBERDERA A

Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.*

SN InHEGRAE

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations
MR
A—ESiE

British Virgin Islands

RBHEBRES

Hong Kong
E

Hong Kong

e

Mainland China
B K R

MELRER
ARABZMBARFFENAT

Issued share/
paid-up capital
B8
EHERA

US$100

10037

HK$100
10078 7T

HK$500,000

500,000 7T

US$45,000,000
45,000,000 37T

Su Zhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$6,000,000
Pharmaceutical Science SlEipN 173 6,000,000 7T
and Technology Co., Ltd.*

BN E SR AR AR

Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$500,000
(Hong Kong) Limited BB 500,00078 7T

Rin#E (BHE) BRAR]

Guangdong Dawnrays Mainland China RMB3,000,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.” B KR AR % 3,000,000 7T

BRRIHEEER AR

Dawnrays (Nantong) Mainland China US$13,500,000
Pharmaceutical Science ==EipNEE 13,500,000 % 7T
and Technology Co., Ltd. *

R (FEi) BRI AR AR

i These subsidiaries were registered under PRC law as foreign-owned &

enterprises.

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
¥/
EiERET D

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

FEER

Investment holding
REZER

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding and
sale of pharmaceutical
products

KEZER N IHE B EEmM

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical
products

FENHEBEE M

Manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical
intermediates

SLE R E B HE T e

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HEBEEM

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HESEEEm

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical
intermediates

BlE RIS B s

ZEMBRRRTPEEEZMAINERERSE -



The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of the subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

31 December 2016 R =T —X<FE+=-A=+—H

FEVBHRRERERR ST EIEES ([HE
B EAESS ) RAMBERM RS ER ([ E
BB REER ) (BEMBRRMBEHREER
REFTER((BRE R R2E) B —
KRR R A RF AR RERP B E Z KM R
5o [RBEBBENAREINRZMBEESIN - Bk
MHEBRRBELERARAUGRE  LAARKE(TA
REDIIR - BREEEPIN ESBEHEERA
EREA TR -

HEMBBRREBFARAMENBRARAHE_Z
—ANFETZA=TRIEFENPBRE - B
AEAARERIEEEFNER (BRE—AE
BUEER) BEERARNINBRENESES
Ol ¥R B E 1R & 77 ORI 4 (0 - BEF R NAE T
SEEERRENHEENREELE ) FEED
o

BEYREERREERREARRETARSBREER
B DR - NEBESE BAHMAHERE RN
RENHERETHRRE T ARTHE B85

(@) MEMKERFEEZHENZONGE

b) REHMBRONIBETERNESD &
© ARENREENBERRE-

RENB A RFBHRROREBRERAFER
SHBRENER K - MBEAREEHAEEIF
ZHIEEREEEAMHAR X —EAHAREE
IR IERRIE -

BEkEMGEERERERTIREEASET
NAGER AR - B R e GBI
BabBEEMAESR AEEARBIRNEERRA
& BAE - A AXREAKEKERARERS
HENRSRCNAFIRE RE2BUEHE -

65



31 December 2016 R=ZE—"F+=-A=+—H

66

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

IFRS 14
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the above new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28
included in Annual
Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint \Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses’

Transfers of Investment Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies
to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the
terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. During 2016, the Group performed a high-level
assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. This
preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed
analyses or additional reasonable and supportable information
being made available to the Group in the future. The expected
impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised as
follows:

(@ Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 wiill
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at fair
value.

(b) Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present value of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade and
other receivables. The Group will perform a more detailed
analysis which considers all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking elements, for
estimation of expected credit losses on its trade and other
receivables upon the adoption of IFRS 9.
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Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for application now.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirement, under IFRSs. In April 2016, the
IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term. The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.
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Amendments to IAS 12 were issued with the purpose of addressing
the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses related
to debt instruments measured at fair value, although they also have
a broader application for other situations. The amendments clarify
that an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits will be
available against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the
reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will
be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group companies. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Company Limited (“Dawnrays International”), Dawnrays
Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Limited (“Dawnrays Biotechnology”),
Dawnrays International Company Limited (“Dawnrays International
(HK)”) and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays
Pharma”) (collectively the “Overseas Companies”) is the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these companies are translated into RMB at the exchange rate
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rate for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Overseas Companies are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Overseas Companies which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rate for the year.
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Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates
and sales taxes or duties. Revenue is recognised on the following
bases:

Sale of goods

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries where the Group operates.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred tax (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

IEFERIR (42)

ELEHBAEENREE  ESEAREHRTUE
B - SN REA R AR BN R AR AR A
HEEMZARED - AFRELERBEEERE
B - RFHERELERREENSRERRETEN
FHE - W E R R AERTUEFE 2 B AR
ERIAEERBARRER -

BLERBEEMBENREERRKARBEN
HREERERNTERAE - WARERARSLER
HAM LD EERNTR (RBOE) REE -

WEFEEE L RFIRITAERN  AEAERE—
A E RS KR — R BT IR & B K B A A 1R
BEEH - ADPREEHABEEREENARAR -

BFERN A B RE H S ESRR - UREE
ST MRS IR R LA DAL B T IARERR, © MR —
HERAR  AMREEFERMKAR T IA 2 SRR
BRGHERBA -

B R —IREERR - BIEARERAELY
A URBEREENTEAIERFRAANSEFS
BEBRRIIREERAEE - AR ETL AR
FREEK -



The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the
Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an appropriate capitalisation
rate shall be applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-
Merton valuation model, further details of which are given in note
29 to the financial statements. The cost of equity-settled
transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the participants as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share
(further details are given in note 12).

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
as defined by IAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” above.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
where observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or loss if
the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes payables,
other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Over the lease terms
20 to 25 years

51to 10 years

3 to 25 years

4 years

Leasehold land

Buildings

Machinery and other equipment
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments under
operating leases, which are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Cont’d)

Research and development costs (Cont’d)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production.

Category Estimated useful life
Hhl AT A A 1
Software 10 years

LIS T4

Deferred development costs 10 years

IRAE R BN T

The estimated residual value is zero.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

TREASURY SHARES

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average basis

Finished goods and ~ Cost of direct materials and labour and a
work in progress proportion of manufacturing overheads

based on the normal operating capacity
but excluding borrowing costs

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted or pledged as to use.
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PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the
higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the guidance for revenue
recognition.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd) BIE ()
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) WMIBREEERIE TIGEEZ—  BIfE AREH

applies: p

() the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBHEAEEBRFE—SBEMKE
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy ZEBARSEREMNBESIXEEH
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of (KBRS —EENEQF - BRI
the other entity); RRHBAR)

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZERAAEEAR-—F=HHN&EE
third party; B

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (vv HP—FRE=Azaegt® M5
other entity is an associate of the third entity; —FARE=AZEENT

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZERAASEFIEASEEFHE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity RIEBERNER BRI ENEE

related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) FZEEEX Ll (a)IEH AT A L AT
identified in (a); Sk HE RS

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over (vi)y Eut@)EFRRATHZERESR
the entity or is a member of the key management BEAXEARZERE HZEENER
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and ARNEZEEBREABNKE : &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viii) Ei‘éﬁ%‘k% ERMESENIMKE
part, provides key management personnel services to NG 7%$§%@32$’§ EllzoR SNk
the Group or to the parent of the Group. {#I BABRT ©

DIVIDENDS BE

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved REBRERERAF RS ERRIEREREE
by the shareholders in a general meeting. F o

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, EED VAN FEE A= N SE/NSI PR A= e il ey
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association TEEFTRTHRENES Zli’“ﬂ—lﬁﬁ;rk%%&
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. EIRF RS o Bt - PHIRRE =R
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a FrERRARE -

liability when they are proposed and declared.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgements that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a
product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management model.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on assessment of their
recoverability. The identification of impairment of receivables
requires management’s judgements and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables and impairment loss/reversal of impairment in the
period in which such an estimate has been changed.

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

%@@%$%EM&%%W%%%%¢&A%‘
P28 - 32 ﬁ?éﬂ%ﬁZ%%‘E&REZE

T URKARBEZREAHE - EFRERE -

- ZERR LA 2 THEE |$‘Tﬁu£?§&ﬂ§1ixﬁsz

FEEEFRBEIRAEFLENHE -

¥
RERAEEY @ AR  SHED T
B - HUBRERR SEAGREAYE

DN
FBKATRBHMEHRRME 24NN GTRERT
BRI > KAVIREAMETBEE — (HEMRF %
HREIN—ERTERRKREEEEHETR
iy B A BRI AT A L 2z IR

fh st R HEE M
REEMREY AR RE MG TREENES
RREHEARL - AARESET ST
EERARNEEEBELEABEN BRI
mF

FE WS AR R (E

FEW BRSO BB —RAR B E AT M R RO RHE AL -
FEUR BURE T & IR B RO HI BN AN SR RETE - B8
RERZERKFARER NG TRE - EZAE
B CHHMRA  ZERBFERERFSRE
BB/ RERCNREEE -

97



31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

98

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or
competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and has two reportable segments as
follows:

(@)  Manufacture and sale of intermediates and bulk medicines (the
“intermediates and bulk medicines” segment)

(b)  Manufacture and sale of finished drugs (including antibiotics
finished drugs and non-antibiotics finished drugs) (the
“finished drugs” segment)

Management monitors the operating results of these operating
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, government grants, dividend
income, fair value gains/losses from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and bank,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.
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Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank loans, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

Year ended
31 December 2016

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Unallocated gains
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

BE-ZT—XRF
+=A=+—-H
IEFE

DEWA
HINEE
HIERIEE

e\

7 ERE
B :

A Bl et
EERFEAR
Zalp-gus

i8R

[ 252 Bl S A

Intermediates

and bulk
medicines
e
IR R
RMB’000

ARBTR

163,586
50,028

213,614
(14,489)

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

DERAETEE BRI

HAEBEREMARD LA

BENEEREEEE -

DERAEERERS ﬁﬁﬁi

HE R AT AR TS E R

Finished
drugs

B 5
RMB’000

ARBFR

660,765

660,765
419,905

Elimination of
intersegment
sales

K 88
PEBEE
RMB’000
ARET R

(50,028)

(50,028)

K BNTRIE R
B&m%ﬁ%'

LR
TIHR#ZE

EREENF =%

Total

Y
RMB’000

ARBTR

824,351

824,351
405,416

23,598

(95,558)
(157)

333,299
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Year ended
31 December 2015

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers

Intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Unallocated gains
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

As at 31 December 2016

Segment assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

BHE_Z—H1%F
+=—A=+—8
LEFE

DERA
HINHE
DIEMEEE

DR
B
kPR
LEEEMEK

SR
B 5B A

[ A5 B i A

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines

o A8

K SR
RMB’000
ARBT T

239,612
95,424

335,036
(37,862)

R-ZB-R"E+ZA=+—8H

THEE

£
]

BN
By
o

il

] tl)
iy
T

R e

e
ey

4
EEMEAMR

NEREE

Finished
drugs

PX %%
RMB’000
ARETT

745,388

745,388
498,280

Intermediates

and bulk
medicines

R R

RMB’000
ARBTR

368,763

72,345

Elimination of
intersegment
sales

i
DIEEHEE
RMB’000
AREFT

(95,424)

(95,424)

Finished
drugs

PR &2
RMB’000
ARBTT

531,042

65,146

Total

B
RMB’000
ARBTT

985,000

985,000
460,418

28,549

(110,254)
(1,524)

377,189

Total
wmy
RMB’000

ARET T

899,805

986,559
1,886,364
137,491

112,117

249,608
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Intermediates
and bulk Finished
medicines drugs Total
[ 8 N SRR 2 P % P
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=1+—~H ARBTFT AREETT ARBTFT
Segment assets: DEEE 468,460 539,964 1,008,424
Reconciliation: FHE
Corporate and other EREMRIEEE
unallocated assets 795,312
Total assets REE 1,808,736
Segment liabilities: DHEEE 117,973 78,786 196,759
Reconciliation: B
Corporate and other rERHEMRIEEE
unallocated liabilities 133,101
Total liabilities BaE 329,860
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION WE S HE
(@ Revenue from external customers (@) REIIBEFHKBA
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFT
Mainland China ailciPN 23 723,982 861,111
Other countries HaBH=R 100,369 123,889
824,351 985,000
The revenue information above is based on the locations of A BRI R E T -
the customers.
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
The Group’s operations are substantially based in Mainland NEEHLETSERERR AR  AEE
China and over 95% of the non-current assets, excluding HBiBos% M IEREBEE (TRIERILERIES
deferred tax assets, of the Group are located in Mainland E)EhERRAE  HIERHEENHE
China. Therefore, no further analysis of geographical BRE—SDTURER o

information is presented.
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Revenue, represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WARHEERNBREE BESIMMMBERFE -

allowances for returns and trade discounts.

REBWA - BB ARWESTAT

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:
2016 2015
ZE—ARF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEE MR 824,351 985,000
Other income Hbug A
Bank interest income HRITHEMWA 13,185 21,890
Dividend income from equity investments BREDF AR EY R Z RERER
at fair value through profit or loss A% B WA 367 159
Foreign exchange differences M 5 =% 6,966 2,951
Government grants R IT R 2,580 3,689
Others HAh 824 2,624
23,922 SilFSill3
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of equity investments HEBBERUNAETYR 2 RE
at fair value through profit or loss WE MW 101 168
Fair value gains, net: ArEME - FRE
Equity investments at fair value through BiRBmIAAR BN ZRERE
profit or loss 402 —
503 168
24,425 31,481
2016 2015
=BT —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETTT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable AR AFRNBHEEDN
within five years RITERZFIE 157 1,524
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBWHBR AR D&M/ (GFA) THI&E
BET :
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR® T ARETIT
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFERA 310,144 412,153
Depreciation e 13 51,988 53,250
Recognition of land use rights* =+ {5 AR R R 14 1,041 1,041
Research and development costs: 7T R F B A
Amortisation of intangible assets*** A 16 596 639
Current year expenditure REELH 26,132 31,921
26,728 32,560
Minimum lease payments under KERA T &EHES -
operating leases:
Buildings BF 984 888
Auditors’ remuneration A GRS 1,388 1,388
Employee benefit expense (including BEEBANAL (BEEEN

directors’ and chief executive officer’s wEME (7))
remuneration (note 7)):

Wages and salaries ITERS® 64,799 86,621

Equity-settled share option expense VARG #E 2 RO RE AR A B S 11,423 8,966

Retirement benefits RIRGEF 7,331 7,464

Accommodation benefits EE @A 3,549 3,464

Other benefits Hith 1&g 12,089 12,096

99,191 118,611

Foreign exchange differences, net MEH =% - F58 (6,966) (2,951)
Impairment of property, plant and W BE - RERE

equipment 13 755 -
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRZ A Z38 %8

realisable value 8,087 15,800
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: AAEMER), BB FE

Equity investments at fair value through & B8z A A B BR 2 Ax

profit or loss wE 4 (402) 594

Bank interest income SRITF BN 4 (13,185) (21,890)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BMENMRESZHEED

plant and equipment &8 36 222
Gain on disposal of equity investments at B & & BiBz AR LB E Z A%

fair value through profit or loss A W 4 (101) (168)

The depreciation of RMB42,717,000 for the year is included in “Cost of . ijﬂi?ﬁ%ﬁEMEWNWYOOO?EEEW\ [BEFEK

inventories sold”.

The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in “Administrative * FRNE L E FAREERGT ARE BRI [1THRER] -
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Other o FRMET BERH AR RIERN [HAER] -

expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)

R LRI & X A6 58 383(1)(a), (b), (o) &
(N B e 2 RGBS — BB (EE NS BRI FR) Privee

104

and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the FANEZRBEMSOT ¢
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREETIT
Fees we 978 728
Other emoluments: E b -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZAREYEN 3,502 3,109
Bonus %55 3,757 -
Equity-settled share option expense VA RS #E S2 A~ i) B AR 7 2 4,198 -
Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIER 65 56
11,522 3,165
12,500 3,893
(a) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (@) BAFFTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during REEBIIENTESHRESHT ¢
the year were as follows:
2016 2015
—E—E —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETIT
Mr. Pan Xue Tian ELHEE 177 140
Mr. Choi Tat Ying, Jacky BERSE 177 140
Mr. Lo Tung Sing, Tony BRI A 177 140
531 420

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2015: Nil).

AERWEENWBIIFATEENEGHE

(ZE—hF &)



7.

Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 7.
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE

RA 35 80 R P oF

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

EXREEME (E)

(b) HTEE FHTEERER

OFFICER
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonus expense contributions remuneration
E2 = 114 DR AT Bk
e ENEA #e  BRERX HE 8N MenE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETTL AREFT AREFT ARBETTT
2016 ZE-RE
Executive directors: WiES:
Ms. Li Kei Ling* FHB L 4 936 - - 20 997
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERME LA M 576 - - 20 637
Mr. Li Tung Ming FHRA%E 4 576 - - 20 637
123 2,088 - - 60 2,21
Non-executive directors: FRITEE:
Mr. Leung Hong Man PRREAE 147 - - - - 147
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi t £ 177 - - - - 177
324 - - - - 324
Chief executive officer: FEs
Mr. Chen Shaojun* REBE 7
(appointed on 18 April 2016) (RZE—~F
MHA+N\BHEME) - 1,414 3,757 4,198 5 9,374
447 3,502 3,757 4,198 65 11,969
2015 —E-5F
Executive directors: HTEE:
Ms. Li Kei Ling* FHRLL*
(also the Chief Executive Officer, (848 R -Z— 1%
appointed on 1 March 2015) =R—-BEZA) 39 885 - - 18 942
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERME L 39 545 - - 18 602
Mr. Li Tung Ming FRA%E 39 545 - = 18 602
17 1,975 - - 54 2,146
Non-executive directors: FRITES:
Mr. Leung Hong Man RRREE 112 - - - - 112
Mr. Ede, Ronald Hao Xi EDE, Ronald Hao Xi 7t 4
(appointed on 15 June 2015) (R=Z—h%F
~NATRBEREMR) 79 - - - - 79
191 - - - - 191
Chief Executive Officer: ot
Ms. Huang Dong Mei* RS Y
(resigned on 1 March 2015) (R=—Z—4%E
= A—BEHf) - 1,134 - - 2 1,136
308 3,109 - - 56 3,473
ANNUAL REPORT 2016 « —Z—~#4% 105
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(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Cont’d)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Ms. Huang Dong Mei resigned as chief executive officer of the
Company on 1 March 2015. Ms. Li Kei Ling then was appointed to act
as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 1 March
2015 and resigned on 18 April 2016. Mr. Chen Shaojun was appointed
to act as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 18
April 2016.

The five highest paid employees during the year included the chief
executive officer and a director, details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2015: three) non-director and non-chief executive officer
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIME R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands
is as follows:

¥ B REMEN
VA RSCAE S A< ) s SO A B 2

(b) BITES  FHTEEREAR(E)

FAMBEEHRXFRAERZTAHSOR
B

HEMRIR - E-—RF=A—HBERELRAR
BE - FEHRLIBEN-_T-—RAF=A—HAKE
ERARARRE RN T —NFMA+N\ABHE :
RAFEEER_FT-—AFOA+NBRZER/R
NGRS

FALUSKSHEERFRAR—UES KEZ
e F BN EXME7 - B T = (ZT—RF :
=) FEFRIFEHZEHREENFRNNFHF M
T

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
2,141 5,952
1,342 6,326

125 34

3,608 12,312

M@ F TIARNNFEERFERRTH
MEEMABIAT :

Number of employees

EEAY
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—HhF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 1,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 75 5,500,001 JTT 2 7% # 6,000,000 7T - 1
3 3

During the year, no share options were granted to three non-
director and non-chief executive officer highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group.

FR - ZRFEERFRBEHMERTEAR
FERREBREMER THRME -



In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company, Dawnrays
International Company Limited, Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong)
Limited and Dawnrays Biotechnology Capital (Asia) Limited have
participated in the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee, to provide retirement benefits
to their respective Hong Kong employees. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme are made in accordance with the statutory limits
prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) state
regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme. All employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the average basic
salary amount of the geographical area of their last employment at
their retirement dates. The Mainland China Subsidiaries are required
to make contributions to the local social security bureau at 20% to
22% (2015: 20% to 22%) of the previous year’s average basic
salary amount of the geographical area where the employees are
employed by the Mainland China Subsidiaries.

The Group has no further obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Mainland China Subsidiaries and their employees are each required
to make contributions to an accommodation fund at 8% to 10%
(2015: 8% to 10%) of the salaries and wages of the employees
which is administered by the Public Accumulation Funds
Administration Centre. There is no further obligation on the part of
the Group except for such contributions to the accommodation
fund.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant obligation

apart from the contributions as stated above.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 are:

Current income tax = HAT 3

Current income tax charge EHMEHR TN
Deferred income tax (note 26) FEREFTE (M5 26)
Total tax charge for the year AFEEHBS LB

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

ERCGRHIMERTRE A BRGNS 5P 7R
o ARE RBEBEBRERNARAR  RIEHE
(BRE)ERARRRRENREER (TN AR
RAEMA—ERESFE (RBLERAEEZ
ERENKEE)  AEERERBRMIRRERN - MR
e EIEH AR IR A TE £ R PIFTRT AR R
HRERBERE °

BREERERAE  FRAKEHBARELERS
ZREETE - FIBEEREERBHERZERSE
BEZEMHTHEAFSHET L OTENE
RS - PREAKENBARARS ML SRER
T HFREE ZERPEARENE A FHE X
ERFHERFELH20%E2% (T —FF:
20% B 22%) 5t H o

B B FEHRIN  ARELERGEMER
RN

BREFENABRANIER - PEIAERE QR R
RERBXBARREENHFERTENBHE10%

“E-RF 8% EI0%)A-EAATEEEESR
LDEERNEFESHNR - RZEREBEFEESHN
I REELEEAMEAE -

“ERFTZA=+T—R  BLEA#HR - K
B EAMEART

S

HE-_Z—REr-_ZE—AHF+-_A=+—H1t
FEAMEMITHOESAKIBH T ¢

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —ET-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETIT
61,028 70,257
6,354 4,734
67,382 74,991
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Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an undertaking
from the Governor-in-Council that no law which is enacted in the
Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income,
gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its operations.
The undertaking for the Company is for a period of 20 years from 8
October 2002. Accordingly, the Company is not subject to tax.

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) is
not subject to income tax, as this subsidiary does not have a place
of business (other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to tax at a statutory
corporate income tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) under the
income tax rules and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profits arising in its respective Hong Kong subsidiaries
during the year (2015: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law effective from 1
January 2008, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) was qualified as a High-New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province. As a result,
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical had been entitled to a
concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for three years
commencing on 1 January 2008. During the years ended 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2014, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical renewed, for every three years, the qualification of
the HNTE of Jiangsu Province. As a result, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical was continuously entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% commencing on 1 January 2011.

All other subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject to the
corporate income tax rate of 25% in 2016.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

RIEF S BB BT RIA(—NANEETE) E6
 ARRDESRERFAAIRBRE  HEHE
B FERE AR AR EIOFBET - WA -
BB - HARAGFEGH T+
ANBRAEM=TF - Bt - FATBAME -

TA BB M R SURE B ST A SZ 9 Y /B8 8 ] 4B 2R A
st REMBRARNRBEARE S EEE
Ho R (HERE M Y B BERRIN) SRS B (MR -

RIBEBMFSFARREREN - HEWE A RAR
EEEMEBRE1665%(ZZE—RHF : 16.5%)
o ARAEBERAFEEERENSHE R B E
EERRBAF - MBS BB RSB D BE
(ZZ—hF &) -

RER-_ZFZENE A - BEERNTELEMR
BH0E - MEXERBQRIAERES B ERTIRA
#) 25% FT 1S R -

RIZBZNFTAZ+—R  HFNRGREFRA
B(TERM RIS ) BT E S MBI X (TS
MR ])ERE - Qi #FNRIGREGES =
ZENF-A-HERH=ZFANZEX15%HNEBEMN
BYREX -R_F——F+_A=+—BLFER=
ENEF-A=FT—HILFEA  #MRIEIEE
BoFREGIHE SN RMEENERMELD
HEMNRRRES T ——F - A - ARETE
X15% MEBEMERE

TEARENMEEMHBARR T —
26% MR BN EEH ©

NERE

RIBPBEEEMFHOE - R BIARERZE SN R
BELXRIEREESTIRNOBE - EIL10%8
KPYWFENH - ZREA_TENF-—A—BE
B AEBAR-_ZTLF+_A=+—HENHA
A o fisrh BIRREER SN IR B & PR BDE IR B %RA]
B - BIARARENTRINHR X - AEENE
A#ER% Bt BZEENF-A—HBE -
7N 52 B A s AE B K B P SZ Y Y B R R BT EE AR Y
ENT D ENKEBITBEENROE -



A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the country or jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

R RR 5 A M I AR 2 B R KRR D i A
AEMBER AR EE B R E 2 BEX H A
NERBEAEZRA HHE  WERHRE

tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the

applicable rate to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax

At the PRC’s statutory income tax rate of 25%
(2015: 25%)

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax concession
or lower tax rate enacted by local authority

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current income tax
of previous years

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax credit for qualified research and
development expense

Tax losses not recognised

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

At the effective income tax rate of 20.22%
(2015: 19.88%)

Interim — HK$0.03 (2015: HK$0.03)
per ordinary share

Proposed final — HK$0.1 (2015: HK$0.12)
per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ERBRE RN
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETIT
BTSRRI E 5Ha 333,299 377,189
BzEP I/itmﬁﬁ ST E25%
—RF :25%) 83,325 94,297
TE%%IE%@E%IJ&“@W%
BITREMR R ZHRETE (34,499) (38,477)
ZISEIEPIMTE RlZ Ao HL
FEZzENREE 13,848 16,521
ERABFFEEHMEHR 2 A%
9) =
L b2 3,120 2,347
FE IEHR GRS
B (1,747) (2,216)
REERRIAEE 3,378 2,915
H A DR & Al N I8 B 18 (34) (396)
?-TI?’ Pﬁ?%’m%ﬁi 20.22%
(= ©19.88%) 67,382 74,991
2016 2015
—RE —hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEFIT
FHIRE T ERE®0.037T
—HhF : B¥0.037T) 20,735 19,980
BORREARR B - FEBERBEE 01T
—T—RF:B¥0127T) 71,082 80,648
91,817 100,628
RRBEN RPN EEFARATREAREBEAX
iR o
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 802,423,749
(2015: 804,079,978) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent

BRERBHNRRY AR EBRERTEE ARKA
RER G R EFERNC BT E BB 2 T 15
15 £0802,423,7490% (= ZF— R : 804,079,978%)
RERT EEEREBRBN N EBRRND < iEF
BERBEEREESRERBRNNFEAND T
R I ERTBE A TT Sk AR EE R Y
BRRMREEEERERITHE BB NEFS
P&

NSRRI EEREREN LR EERERAT
MBI

BRAE BB A ARESN

2016 2015
=i s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
265,917 302,198

Number of shares

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average number
of ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
adjusted for the effect of dilution

iy
AEEREARNARABFEACET
BB T8

ABERE — IR AR -

BRE

RO E
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hE
Thousands Thousands
T Tz
802,424 804,080
557 2,473
802,981 806,553



Cost:

As at 1 January 2015

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 15)

Disposals

Cost adjustments

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 15)

Disposals

Transfers (a)

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2015

Depreciation provided for the year

Disposals
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016

Depreciation provided for the year

Impairment for the year
Disposals

Transfers (a)

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2016

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2016

As at 31 December 2015

B
RZZ-1F-A-H
//J\E
EETRER(fF15)

HE
HERE
S E

=% £¢+ A=t-H
~NE-RA-H

NE

HRTRER (M 15)

HE
250
R

RZ2-RE+=A=+-H

ZETERAE

W=F-1%-A-AH
ERTERE

e

& 5 A%

Xi g /\ff- A
FRNERHE
FRRE
HE
E% ()

ERAE

RZZ-RE+-A=1+-H

REFE:
RZZ-RE+-A=1+-H

R=B-AF+ZA=t-H

Leasehold
land

BELH
RMB'000
ARBTTL

1,127

26,249

1,944

28,193

140

28,053
26,149

Buildings

B
RMB'000

ARETT
266,283

2,586

(6,438)
181

262,612
43

5,683
241
313

268,892

65,107
11,821

76,944
11,766

21
48

88,768

180,124
185,668

(@)  Transfers represented the reclassification between buildings,
office equipment, machinery and other equipment.

(b) At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB31,815,000 (2015: RMB29,821,000) were

mortgaged to secure a bank loan (note 24).

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

Machinery
and other Office Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
HER
Hiik e BAERME "E ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETTT
603,857 10,912 12,898 919,072
1,025 106 - 1,130
19,563 299 - 22,448
(885) 679) (450) (2,014)
6,106 - - (332)
- 57 - 1,365
629,666 10,694 12,448 941,669
1,517 478 553 2,591
5,105 13 6,669 17,470
(2,789) (167) (1,952) (4,908)
(263) 22 = -
- 98 - 2,305
633,236 11,138 17,718 959,177
210,253 7,283 10,178 292,387
39,964 766 668 53,250
(722) 611) (406) (1,739)
- 19 - 38
249,49 7457 10,440 344,436
37,911 823 1,466 51,988
755 - = 755
(2,510) (150) (1,757) (4,417)
(28) 7 - -
- 39 = 9%
285,623 8,176 10,149 392,856
347,613 2,962 7,569 566,321
380,171 3,237 2,008 597,233

HBBRRBT  MAERE  HEREMR
BEVEDIR -

R-E—XRE+-A=+—8 X&£EEET
EEMELHEREFFEREHNARE
31,815000L( = & — F F: /\E%
29,821,0007t) B IR HEIR—ERITE R (Kt
24) o
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31 December 2016 R—Z— <&+ -A=+—8

14. LAND USE RIGHTS 14, T ibfERARE
The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments REE 2 T FRERRKEERNEN 2 T
under operating leases and their carrying amounts are analysed as EFREBEREBESTET :
follows:
2016 2015
—EB-AF —Z—h¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BERAEE 41,216 42,257
Recognised during the year FRER (1,041) (1,041)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HEEE 40,175 41,216
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. ZEIRE
2016 2015
AL —ZE—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARBTFT
As at 1 January n—H—H 4,304 13,086
Additions NE 19,420 13,666
Transferred to property, plant and equipment 4% - BB R EE (M5 13)
(note 13) (17,470) (22,448)
Disposals HE (478) -
As at 31 December R+-—B=+—H 5,776 4,304
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2016
—E-RE
Deferred
development
costs Software
EERBAER B

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARE®TR

Cost: B

As at 1 January n—A—H 35,226 2,312
Additions NE 7,013 95
Disposals & - (1,278)
As at 31 December R+t=R=1+-8 42,239 1,129

Accumulated amortisation ZiH#8KFHE
and impairment:

As at 1 January ®—R—H 17,081 1,828
Amortisation provided for FREE

the year 596 232
Disposals HE - (1,278)
As at 31 December R+t=B=+-8 17,677 782
Net book value: BREFE
As at 31 December NM=-—A=1+—-AH 24,562 347
As at 1 January R—HA—H 18,145 484

At cost or net realisable value:

Raw materials R
Work in progress 8
Finished goods BURY dh

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at estimated selling prices less estimated costs was
RMB32,912,000 (2015: RMB69,231,000).

Total

%
RMB’000

ARBTR

37,538
7,108
(1,278)

43,368

18,909

828
(1,278)

18,459

24,909

18,629

VARK 7R3 F] 2238 FHEFTHE :

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

2015
8%
Deferred
development

costs Software
IEIEF B A i
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AR¥ETET
31,581 2,301
3,645 34
= (23)
35,226 2,312
16,442 1,626
639 225
= (29)
17,081 1,828
18,145 484
15,139 675

2016

= i

RMB’000

AR® T

24,353

35,011

65,382

124,746

Total

k]
RMB’000
ARBTT

33,882
3,679
(23)

37,538

18,068

864
(23)

18,909

18,629

15,814

2015
—ET—hF
RMB’000
ARETFIT

32,492
46,086
69,169

147,747

R-ZT—ARE+-A=1+—8  UEHTHEEERE
SR ARNFEREMEAARK32,912,000T( ==
—FRF : AR¥69,231,0007T) °
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31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

Trade receivables W E 5 FIE
Impairment BIE
Notes receivable JEW I FIA

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally three months for major
customers. Each customer has a credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to manage credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade and notes receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, net of provisions, is as follows:

Trade receivables FEU R S 3kIA

Outstanding balances with ages:
Within 90 days 90 HMA
Between 91 and 180 days 91E180H

Between 181 and 270 days 181 £2270H

Bkl B 0 Y 1) R ER R -

2016 2015
—B-AF —F—IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
111,121 118,482
(437) (437)
110,684 118,045
114,976 164,128
225,660 282,173

BHIEP —REBEBFRN AREIEREES
AEFFRH - MEBEFEEH—RR=MEA -
BUEFPHURBEERRE - ARBEREEREAKE
BRWHR  YREFEEEBFAITEEERR -
BREEEE € E M BERRK o R LA
R BERASENRKE S TR IAETRATS
At ESEETOEERR - BKE S REER
AR ©

NGB EEE  RREHRNERE SZHEHNERD
W

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AREETIT
108,463 99,219
2,125 12,019

96 6,807

110,684 118,045



The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

FEWE 5 FIRH RERBESINT

2016 2015

—E-XRE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTFT

At 1 January and 31 December Bn—A—BEt+-A=+—H 437 437

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is provided
for individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of RMB437,000 (2015:
RMB437,000). The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers with financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired R HA R N R (B
Less than three months past due BH D 3 1E A
Over three months past due BHRSME A LA

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

bt R M R 5 R T ) Ok (L 1 £ T e B A T O RR T
MEARB4700T(ZZE—HF: ARK
437,0007T) K & B 2 IR 1B FE W B 5 FRIREHE © &%
FERIC R ERKE 5 IR EEAMBRE 2
BEFAH - AEBEWEAZ S EBRTE EAER
fn Sk BREREL A (5 B SR A5 36 ©

RAWERENERE ZHRIBERERITAOT

2016 2015
—®-XxE  —T-T%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARMTE
108,463 108,936
2,125 5,454

96 3,655

110,684 118,045

R 780 5 e 3 S R 1B Y B UK OB T S K 8 A O R
BHIELNZEEFER -

B HY B 0 R B A EUGRIA T B % 1 BN SR [ A
FREFEBRENBUEPBRE - ERIAELR -
AEBEERABANLSERIEHRERE
REEERYENREAEE) - MARBRITIER
AR 2EURE o AREE Y B ZF AR A TR
ERRIRBEAEEINEFEE ©
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FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NOT DERECOGNISED
IN THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with a carrying amount of RMB14,262,000 to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and accordingly, it continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Notes and
the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
Endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use of
the Endorsed Notes, including sale, transfer or pledge of the
Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amounts of the trade payables and other payables settled by the
Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have
recourse were RMB12,821,000 and RMB1,441,000 as at 31
December 2016, respectively.

Prepayments TEfRT K
Deposits and other receivables
Structured deposits

REBIEER

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

Listed equity investments, at market value TR E
The above equity investments at 31 December 2016 and 2015
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

B R H A U IR

ETE

AEBRIUIEBRACUMBEE

R-TE—RNFE+_A=+—8  RAENRTEN
AEBMEER TEAEARE 14,262,000 70 2 &K
ER(TBEER]) THETHER  UXN&ER
ZERERIENESR(EED - EFREAE K
SEEE LHREBRBREE®  ERBEEEEE
ZRZEHNRR - At AEBEFEERSERE
ZEHEEAERENIERENEZR - BEER - &
SEWRRBEAERAESRER 2EMEN - 825
HE BRI ERSEZRTEMEME=F - F
A BRBEERYNoHEEREREZENE
FHRREMENFERE—R"F+A=+—
AEEEE N AARE12,821,000 TH AR
#1,441,000 7T °

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
7,760 7,052
3,198 6,778
210,000 =
220,958 13,830

bPEERFBBRLERE - LilESRBIE 2
T8 B BT B0 B8 40P 5P WO JEUGRIR A B o

2016 2015
=i —T—h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
7,794 3,683

RZE—ARER_ZT—AF+_A=+—H  Lit
RIERENDERURZZBENMRENIRE - £
RERABEASEEEABEBRIERNAARETER
RIRREIRE o



31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

2016 2015

—B-AF —F—IF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARETT

Cash and cash in banks RE RIBTER 129,407 64,632
Short-term deposits HHIF 533,889 621,158
663,296 685,790

Term deposit with maturity over three months 2B H #8:8 =18 A 1 E BB1F =X - (122,500)
Bank deposit pledged for letters of credit BiERAEmEETR 2 RITFRK - (10)
- (122,510)

Cash and cash equivalents B RIRESZEEY 663,296 563,280

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances and short-
term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB503,633,000 (2015: RMB442,055,000) in Mainland China.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks (including the pledged bank deposits and term
deposit with maturity over three months) earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

R-E—ARF+_A=1+—8  AEBERFEKE
BREABARENBESREBTAFTEEHERE
EAR®503633,000(=ZFE—HF: AR
442,055,0007T) ° AR I T B M A B AHM
B R ARIR P BKRESNE B HIE AR R AERE
BEANEETIRER  AEBBESBRETETIN
EEBHRITHEARBLBRAEME -

RITFR(BREERRTFRRIBABE=E
HH)E #1750 69 ) B4R IR S B 17 RRE ) R BRER o
BT FFHERAT - RE=EATE  RFK
SEMRSFRME @ WA E AR HIE #7750
KEREA S o |RITEBREFAOLHRETRIER -
EEREFHRITH - REMRESFEYHREERE
EHRTE °
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An aging analysis of the trade payables and notes payable as at the RBERROENE S RENEEFIERR ST

end of the reporting period is as follows: UM
2016 2015
—B-RF —E—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTFT

Outstanding balances with ages: RERER S 2 A 1R K BREE ¢

Within 90 days 90 HA 33,765 101,515
Between 91 and 180 days 912180H 53,238 39,290
Between 181 and 270 days 181 £270H 228 389
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360 H 3 43
Over one year —FLAE 704 1,891
87,938 143,128

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and
notes payables approximate to their fair values. The aggregate
carrying amount of the trade payables settled by the Endorsed
Notes during the year to which the suppliers have recourse was
RMB12,821,000 as at 31 December 2016 (note 18).

ENEZFRTDAFHER—KREA+TBRES
Bt - BENESRREFAZREEREEALER
B BBEERBXNZHERBEREZRNE
FGRZEEEER T R"F+_A=+—8%

AR# 12,821,000 7T (FitzF18) °

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AREFIT

Advances from customers TR BR X 6,929 15,310

Accruals TERER 41,542 34,317

Taxes other than corporate income tax Fr{>ZEFTER N TLIE 14,966 12,204
Payable for purchases of machinery ISR RIEFREMEN R

and construction of buildings 6,472 10,372

Other payables H fth FEAT X 28,195 42,197

98,104 114,400

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average ERER R TSR B RN E A A5 EH o H
settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of the other ERZLRFEREREEmMEEE AL EEE - 6
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. The Emy S HEFEERERE Y HtbEMZY
aggregate carrying amount of the other payables settled by the BERER-_ZE—ANE+_A=+—BAARK
Endorsed Notes during the year to which the suppliers have 1,441,000 7C (HfEE18) ©

recourse was RMB1,441,000 as at 31 December 2016 (note 18).
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Effective interest

rate (%)
BB FI=E (%)

Current EH
Bank loan — secured EEARITER HIBOR*+1.50%
Bank loan — secured BREIRITER HIBOR*+1.75%
Effective interest
rate (%)
B R F & (%)

Current SH
Bank loan — secured EEARITER HIBOR*+1.50%

Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: IRITERAERA
Within one year or on demand DR —F S IRE K

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had aggregate bank facilities
of approximately RMB724,397,000 (as at 31 December 2015:
RMB763,035,000), of which bank facilities of HK$40,000,000 (as
at 31 December 2015: HK$18,000,000) were secured by corporate
guarantees of the Company.

Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate
(@) The bank loan is secured by the mortgage of the Group’s leasehold land and

building in Hong Kong with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB31,815,000 (2015: RMB29,821,000) (note 13).

(b) The bank loan is secured by the corporate guarantees of the Company.

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

2016
—E—XREF
Maturity Original Equivalent
= R HER
HK$’000 RMB’000
BT T AR®T T
2017 120@ 108
2017 10,000® 8,996
10,120 9,104
2015
—T—AF
Maturity Original Equivalent
FEARE R BER
HK$’000 RMB’000
BETIT AREFT
2016 10,563@ 8,847
2016 2015
—B-REF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

9,104 8,847

—E-RF+_A=+—8  AEENRITEE
AR ARBET24397,000 (R -E—HF+=
A=+—8: AR#763,0350007T) @ ERE
40,000,000 c(R=—ZT—RAF+_-_A=+—8: 8
18,000,000 7T) SRTIE B EEE AN A RIER R
R o

BRRITRZERE °
(@) ZERITERAREELOFREEN AR 31,815,0007T
WEBHET HREFEAER(ZE—RF: AR¥

29,821,0007T) (FizE13) °

0 HERTRAGAATEATRR -
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31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-AF —F—IF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

At 1 January n—H—H 2,683 3,475
Released to the statement of profit or loss ABRRK (435) (792)
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 2,248 2,683
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRRELEHEEERBEZEHIT

are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS BEEHBEEE
Provision
B
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 6,123
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement FARGFEBRRES 2 RERIE (FiEE10)
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) 3,008
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-E—RF+_A=+—HBHxK
—E—RF—A—H 9,131
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FARGAEBRFRE R ZECEHE (KizE10)
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) (2,402)
Deferred tax assets at 31 December 2016 RZE—RNF+_A=+—HZELEHBEE 6,729
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AN B A R B K e 845 T TR B 1A R ¥ 46,066,000
RMB46,066,000 (2015: RMB41,302,000) that will expire in one to T(ZZE—FHF: AR¥41,302,0007T) © AIFA{E
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits for which no EIHFR —ERF A B RRERT R T - BL5Z
deferred tax assets have been recognised, as they have arisen in EEEAENRERIBEEE S AER  AELRA
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is EXBEEE —REENOMBAR  THRESEE
uncertain that taxable profits will be available against which the tax BIERT= N AT AR E R IEEK -

losses can be utilised.
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26.

27.

Notes to Financial Statements
R 35 8 R P E

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 26. EEBIIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EEFIEEE
RMB’000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2015 RZZT—hFE—H—H 35,010
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FARGEEBRRITBZ
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) EIEFIA (FIFE10) 7,742
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-E—hF+-_A=+—HBRK
—F—R"¥—H—H 42,752
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement FARGREBmEBR 2
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) IEFEFRLIE (F17E10) 3,952
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+-A=+—H 46,704
SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
SHARES 5
2016 2015
—E-RE “ZT-AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Authorised: SETE :
10,000,000,000 (2015: 10,000,000,000) EREESE 01 THE R
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 10,000,000,000 % (= ZF—F £ :
10,000,000,000 f%) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
801,852,000 (2015: 804,848,000) SREEEE 0.1 7TH B
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 801,852,000 % (= Z— R F :
804,848,000 fi%) 80,185 80,485
Equivalent to RMB’000 FSEARET T 84,952 85,206

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 © —Z — XFF
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SHARES (Cont’d)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

Number of

shares in issue

ERITROEA
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hEF

—H—H 806,620,000

Shares repurchased EERMARGL O (3,852,000)

Share options exercised @ & 1T{E H) B I @ 2,080,000
At 31 December 2015 and —ET—hF

1 January 2016 +_)5J:+—E|)Si

—ERF

—HA—H 804,848,000

Shares repurchased EEE R O (3,536,000)

Share options exercised @ B 1T{5E H) B I @ 540,000
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF

+=—A=1+— 801,852,000

(1) The Company repurchased 3,536,000 of its ordinary shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total consideration of HK$18,302,000 before expenses.
The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year. The nominal value of
the cancelled shares of HK$354,000 was transferred to the capital redemption
reserve and the premium on repurchase, and the related costs incurred for
share repurchase, HK$18,021,000 in total, were charged against the share
premium account of the Company.

) During the year of 2016, 540,000 share options under the Company’s share
option scheme were exercised. Accordingly, 540,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued as a result of the exercise of share options.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note
29 to the financial statements.

B (42)
ARABRANEDEAMT -

Share premium

Issued capital account
EETRAE 17 E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
80,662 84,216
(385) (19,344)

208 10,352

80,485 75,224
(354) (21,756)

54 2,460

80,185 55,928

0 AN B2 B 22 P 8 (2] 3,536,000 AR AN 2 7] @ AR 15
éﬁﬁzﬁ@w A% 18,302,000 7T

Total
HK$’000
BT T

164,878
(19,729)
10,560

155,709
(22,110)
2,514

136,113

RE

EERBRORFARE

o BT SHAR 1) EIEAR S 2 B B ¥ 354,000 TE BT E
ZKB%IE!E%{% T A&7 & Bl AT 1+ 2 06 (8 J 4 B 28 A s i

18,021,000 T2 RBAR A R Z R DEERR ©

@ 2016 6 A1 - 540,000 RIBIRA A Al i AR =T &) 2 BB AR R
AT o Eitt - 540,000 REREEEE 01 T2 HBRE

Rz F BRI TEM LT -

AR A AR 812 BN

RHFFE29 °

ERd)iN



The Company repurchased 820,000 of its ordinary shares on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for a total consideration of
HK$3,801,000 before expenses in December 2016. The
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled on 26 January
2017. The nominal value of those shares of HK$82,000 was
transferred to the capital redemption reserve and the premium on
repurchase, and the related costs incurred for share repurchase,
HK$3,734,000 in total, were charged against the share premium
account of the Company.

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2003 (the “2003
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons (including the Company’s directors,
independent non-executive directors, employees of the Group and
other eligible participants as defined under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The 2003 Share Option Scheme became effective on 21 June
2003 and remained in force for 10 years from that date until 20
June 2013.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the 2003 Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

A new share option scheme, which was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2013,
became effective on 21 June 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”, together with the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
“Scheme”) and will remain in force for 10 years until 20 June 2023.
The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are similar to
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 by each grantee with no other
consideration being payable by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period commencing on such date on or after the date on
which the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Board may determine in granting the option but in any event
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall
not be less than the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

RYBRENZHRRNES R HE21 BRER
B AR AR RBIRER AN EMAE - A
XM10BTHRBANRE - AEFEER LB
BZBEXEEMEENANEEEESEREE
PR HE By 2 TE B B B 8 SRR PR A SR U > AT BB B
(BEmMA T SEEHE LA REST TF)REZ
A BRI TR R A AE

BRENTEERESETE  ETSERNLTERA
MBREE () ARARMREHBEREE BERR
PRET AT E - RARRRONREERHA
HIRT R B2 5 B B X P A i) P9 T (8 - HETT
BENFIRARREBRHEE -

BREYTEBETHAEATZAREINKRAS
EERZRRER -

AT Rz et BIRF AARTT A A -

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

InFESE g g 1g
THEE BREHE 1THE(E BAES B
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000

BT BT

per share per share

=1 B
At 1 January ®n—H—H 5.826 19,164 5.365 12,704
Granted during the year FRNEEH 6.068 3,000 6.078 16,400
Exercised during the year FANBITE 3.504 (540) 3.784 (2,080)
Lapsed during the year FARBE KRR 6.340 (300) 6.148 (7,860)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 5.911 21,324 5.826 19,164

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$5.6133 (2015:
HK$6.8332).

FRRERETEENMNEFTHREEEE
5.6133 7T (- —FRF : B¥6.83327T) ©
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The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RRER - RITERERETHEE R TE R
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: S E
2016
—E—REF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE THE" TEHE
’000 HK$
BT
per share
8K
1,324 3.130 25-03-2012 to £ 24-03-2017
1,000 6.440 17-09-2015 to £ 16-09-2020
5,900 5.150 08-01-2016 to & 07-01-2021
3,000 5.270 18-03-2016 to £ 17-03-2021
6,000 7.340 16-04-2016 to & 15-04-2021
1,400 6.380 23-11-2016 to £ 22-11-2021
1,500 6.340 11-05-2017 to £ 10-05-2022
1,200 5.660 08-09-2017 to & 07-09-2022
21,324
2015
—T—RF
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
BIES B 1THEE™ IR HAM
’000 HK$
BT
per share
Bk
1,764 3.130 25-03-2012 to &£ 24-03-2017
1,000 6.440 17-09-2015 to 2 16-09-2020
6,000 5.150 08-01-2016 to £ 07-01-2021
3,000 5.270 18-03-2016 to & 17-03-2021
6,000 7.340 16-04-2016 to 2 15-04-2021
1,400 6.380 23-11-2016 to & 22-11-2021
19,164
The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * T AR Sk B ATAL AR S AR A RIIR A B EL At KR (L & -
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. RIRSA R TTIEB/R T LAGAE -
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The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. This value is inherently subjective and
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitation of the
valuation model used. The following table lists the inputs to the
model:

Date of grant R AH 25/3/2011  17/9/2014  8/1/2015
Dividend yield (%) TRE % %) 197 097 1.21
Expected volatilty (%) BRI (%) 40 42 43
Historical volatilty (%) BERE %) 40 42 43
Risk-free interest rate (%) B ITIRE (%) 1.970 1.584 1.365
Expected life of option (year) BERRIETREHEH (4) 6 6 6
Fair value at the date REHASHNALE

of grant(HK3) (B%) 098 2.45 1.92

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over
the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The 540,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 540,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of HK$54,000 and share premium of HK$1,838,160 as
further detailed in note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 21,324,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.66% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 21,324,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
additional share capital of HK$2,132,400 and share premium of
HK$123,920,720 (before share issue expenses).

18/3/2015

BYABAGEENBRENIAETINE TER
BERMENR — FRSAEEE MG X2
B T RE B A0 6K S R - S0 B RARAR R T2
RW{ERAFERS  EREELFSTEXS
RAHEERE - TRIEZRA B ARRE :

16/4/2015 23/11/2015  11/5/2016  8/9/2016

1.18 0.85 1.04 1.06 1.30
43 43 43 43 43
43 43 43 43 43
1.290 1.065 1.183 0.969 0.694
6 6 6 6 6
1.97 2.82 2.42 2.34 2.03

BREEAFHIRBAEAFNELENETE
RUBERRNTEBEAER SR - TRENRIE REUBHE
BRI R ARBEHRR - ERRBERLEE
PRAEER -

WEEMETBEENERRIARTER
H o

THEE

ok
03

A 71 #9540,000 17 FE B 4 5| B AR A B # AT
540,000 & @A {7 - 18 T AR 7 54,000 78 7T & A%
7 % (81,838,160 8 7T #EIG &0 B KM &t
27 °

7 21,324,00010 AR R ) RETTE - BERE
AADRB BTN 4 2.66% ° RIEAR AR
BARGEE  BEITE AR T BIREASS| BN A R BT
21,324,000 fz FE AN E A% - 1 002,132,400 7 TTHY
P& 25 DA B2 B A7 33 (B 123,920,720 78 7T (R &A% 17 3%
IRX) -

REZB=—RE+-A=+—H  ARAREZE



The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 59 to 60 of the financial
statements.

(i)

(ii)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
as set out in note 1, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

Statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China Subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China Subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until this reserve reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Part of the SSR may be converted to
increase the paid-up capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8
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(i)

BABER
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Financial assets

BBEE

Trade and notes receivables

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value

EWE 5 REEA
STARMR R R
Rl AR

BRBRHURS BT

through profit or loss KR
Cash and bank Re RBITER

Financial liabilities

MEEE

Trade and notes payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans

128

Equity
investments
at fair value

through
profit or loss
FBBEHN
DB
RERE
RMB’000
ARBTR

7,794

7,794

2016
ZE-RE

Loans and
receivables

EAR
BUHE
RMB'000

AR®T R

225,660

213,198

663,296

1,102,154

BN E 5 MEEFIA

FEAEMREN R L TBIRE A
ZHMBaE

FERRITER

2015
—T-RE

Equity

investments

at fair value

through Loans and

Total profit or loss receivables Total

FEBERMN

B3R Bk

g R E FEYzE ek
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARBFT AREFTL
225,660 - 282,173 282,173
213,198 - 6,778 6,778
7,79 3,683 - 3,683
663,296 - 685,790 685,790
1,109,948 3,683 974,741 978,424
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
2 18 85 R AR R SH AR
AERZEBEE HAECHMBAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
87,938 143,128
49,633 64,773
9,104 8,847
146,675 216,748



The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016:

Quoted prices
in active
markets

RWER
miEHHRE
(Level 1)
B
RMB’000
AR¥TR

Equity investments at fair value BBBRUDRETIR
through profit or loss 2RI E 7,794

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank, trade and notes
receivables, trade and notes payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank
loans approximate to their fair values.
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RZFE—RNF+_A=1T—HRIALEFHENE

Fair value measurement using

ERANTERETRIAMBNE

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs

BEAT EALRH

BEGAE BHEBAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
et 1 E=R &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR®T R AR%T R

- - 7,794

BE-_ZT—ARFt-A=+—BILFE F—RHAE
FE_REABAREHEER  TEBEAXBLE
=

RE MRTER - RUCRF LR RE - BAIRK
NENZRE - sT AN - 1E MEAMEURZ M
BEE  FIARMMENRERRERZMBEE -
AR BIRITERNREEREEAAERE
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The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s
operating activities (when revenue or expenses are denominated in
a different currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the
Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign
currencies. RMB, the official currency in the PRC, is not freely
convertible. Enterprises operating in Mainland China can enter into
exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions. Payments for imported materials or
services and remittance of earnings outside of Mainland China are
subject to the availability of foreign currencies which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the enterprises, or
must be arranged through the People’s Bank of China or other
authorised financial institutions. Approval for exchanges at the
People’s Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions is
granted to enterprises in the PRC for valid reasons such as
purchases of imported materials and remittance of earnings. While
conversion of RMB to the Hong Kong dollar or other foreign
currencies can generally be effected at the People’s Bank of China
or other authorised financial institutions, there is no guarantee that
it can be effected at all times.

The Group does not have any significant investment outside of
Mainland China. However, the Group has transactional currency
exposures. These exposures arise from sales of the Group’s
subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. Approximately 12.18% of the Group’s sales
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 12.58%) were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the subsidiaries. Upon receipt of currencies other than the
functional currency, the subsidiaries sell them to the banks
immediately.

AEEFRARKWEZFARENESRBFTHM
BRMBEENAGE  WIHIAEKEERKES -

AEBERTAMS RN ZRABSIINERR - 5
ERBRRBESRER - UTRAEESRANARE
B i BHERRNBRRZBE

SMEE LB

%EH S MTIANARERRKRRSRER

PERBEEL KBRS o NREEAENERE
EH&E%EKE@%%UW& 53 A AT AR
AEENEEENERITE) RASERINE KB
RAMFRERR

BAl - FEBFDERINEES - PEETEEA
REATTEHEHR - RABEARELE 2 CEMEB
FREARRITHEMBA EBEBREIINERS
SATHE O R SR 2 BB KA & FIE B H B A
PER MR 1 2SN (R BREMR ] - IARFEDEIA
SNEFHE 2 B - JMEBEBPBEARRITREAM
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DIBET - MFBEQRBRELBA - AER
HAERPEARRITREMBASREELETS
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B AEBEN1218% 2 HE(ZF — 1 5
12.58%) Ty AR & By b B RPBE B A BRI Th ek |
AN BHEETE - RIREITIREE B IAINZ B
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (Cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2016 —E-RF

If RMB strengthens against the i AR ¥ HETTHE
United States dollar

If RMB weakens against the MARBHETRE

United States dollar

2015 —ZT—hF

If RMB strengthens against the M AREHETHE
United States dollar

If RMB weakens against the i AREE L XL (E

United States dollar

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivables and balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of
the Group, which comprise cash and short-term deposits, other
receivables and equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.
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SN R B (42)

TRINFEMBEMAZRAZERTEZERT -
AEBOBRBADENEINEERHRAIE A LR
HNBRE(HREBEELRRENAREZS) -

Change in Increase/
foreign currency (decrease) in
rate profit before tax

BB RS Z

IEERBE 24, (r4)
RMB’000

ARETT
+5% (5,289)

-5% 5,289
+5% (6,461)

5% 6,461

EERE
AEEERRSEBARNESLRTRS - B8
AEENRE - FARREERETRINES -
VWEEBEERERFE - HAEE - loh - A%
EeREERANERERNIER - iAZEN
SRR AR I R EA -

REMARBEEMMBEENERERR  HhEHiE
ReMEHER  EMOEUGRIRLERBRARR
BEYRZBRERE  NEBRYTTEOMELNE
ERER - ERBSENZEFTANKEE

131



31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

132

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

FERR (&)
HRAKREERZSEZERAREENENE=
FETRS  WAF2EMER - P EERRA
BF/ZZHTFERE Rt AEEALEEFER
SREERR -

EAAEEREKRESERFEEEERRNE
—TEEEMTIWENPBRRM L8 -

REESEE
AEBZEBRAKEEURDESTI TR BERE
BREROER - W TASEEESR T ALK
BE(MERESERT) WA HBEARKELEE
BEEHRESRE -

RBERRAEEREBE L ARBBN R E O
BaEzBHAMm T

payments, was as follows:

Less than

On demand 3 months

REX DSR=MEA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥TR

Interest-bearing bank loans £t B R1TER - 9,104
Trade and notes payables [ERE 5 NEETIE 9,631 66,939
Other payables HAERR 49,633 -
59,264 76,043

Less than

On demand 3 months

BEX  LR=EA

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans 5t 28R17E - -
Trade and notes payables ~ ENE 5 REEHE 12,552 74,510
Other payables H b e 5r 64,773 -
77,325 74,510

2016
—B-RE

3 to less than
12 months 1to5years Over 5 years Total

ZEDR
=@ A —-Z5f EENLE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®TR AR%TR AR%TR
- - - 9,104
11,368 - - 87,938
- - - 49,633
11,368 - - 146,675

2015
0%

3 to less than
12months  1to5years  Over 5 years Total

=EPR
TR —ZAF AFUE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:T
8,847 - - 8,847
56,066 - - 143,128
- - - 64,773
64,913 - - 216,748



CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital plus net debt. The net debt includes
trade and notes payables, other payables and accruals, interest-
bearing bank loans, less cash and bank. Capital represents equity
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Less: Cash and bank

FHRRITER

Net debt FARE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BEARRFAE
BEARBELER

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

e E 5 M RIEFIA
Hib AR TAIRE A

o REe RIRITER

[SYNCIEZ ZE Ny
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EXREHE
AEBEREANEZRRRABAKENRE
REENRERRENEARL R - SURERB#
BN IRFTBREE

AEESRELERBEECEEELEANRBALS
HELHE - BEBIPBERNER  FEExE
S TR B - RIEEA TR K HE
TR - RBE-_E—RF+_A=+T—HBEkZ
R+ -_A=T—HILFEAR FHELRER
MEBR  BRERMBRYEELEMEE -

AEBRAEAABLREREBEARRN > MER
BELXRTVFEERABE RN & EZ BT
H-FREERENEZREENIEA HMEN
R BIZEEM  FEERTER - LHRRES RRTT
TR ERABEEAREA ARG - RREH
RZERBELEMT

2016 2015
—g-XEF  —2-0%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
87,938 143,128
98,104 114,400
9,104 8,847
(663,296) (685,790)
(468,150) (419,415)
1,636,756 1,473,876
1,168,606 1,054,461
(40)% (40)%
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. EiE
(@) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (a) RKEHEHRIE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEBERBEEEHETHAAETRAY
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are ¥ - ERENETEHERN T —ERF2ME -

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZZB—AF+ZA=+—8 FTEBEERK
lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases ANENRIET A BEE S AN B &R RFER
falling due as follows: REMEERIELENT
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Within one year —FA 624 1,041
After one year but within five years —FREAZNASF 335 1,366
959 2,407
(b) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (b) BEAREE
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: AT - (BRERHE -
Plant and machinery B K 2 3,060 7,776
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Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMNEYET
Employee share option benefits BT HERERT

BREFT SR

Pension scheme contributions

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel

Further details of the directors’ and the chief executive officer’s
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

In December 2016, Dawnrays Biotechnology and A [ fE 75 & ¥ &
% 75 BR 7~ 7] (Akeso Biopharma Inc.) (“Akeso”) entered into a joint
venture agreement, for the purpose of, amongst other things,
establishing a joint venture company, BEEIER 7 (ER) BEGRE A
aJ(AD Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“AD Pharmaceuticals”)), and
regulating the funding and management arrangements with respect
to AD Pharmaceuticals and the respective rights and obligations of
Dawnrays Biotechnology and Akeso. Dawnrays Biotechnology
proposed to invest RMB150,000,000 to hold 35% share interests
in AD Pharmaceuticals. AD Pharmaceuticals is to be engaged,
including but not limited to, in the research and development of
products and technologies in relation to biochemistry fields; the
production and sale of related products. On 22 February 2017, AD
Pharmaceuticals was officially established and obtained the
business license.

TREEABME AR

31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

REEFEETEASMS :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
8,237 3,836
4,198 =
65 58
12,500 3,894

EXREENEHBEHNMBERERMET -

RZZE—XRNF+A BRIsEPasm | WEsEYES
BEHRAB(FILEA NFTLAEKEESR « UE
(ERBE)KIEE AT — ERES (ER)ES %
BRAB(ERRESF ) RAERRETNECHAT
BLHERFEIREMTIRILES & B MEFEET -
RinAE W E AR 150,000,000 TC AR B B Rk
RAH 3% 2 BniEx - RBEHFEERERER
PR A A Wb 23 4 8 <E 150 O 22 R K B AT B0 B FE AN
e HEEBMERNEEMSEE - RZZ—+F
ZAZ+ =8 EEAEXKIFEREEEHR

B o
AR

135



31 December 2016 R=F—FE+=-A=+—H

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Equity investments at fair value through

profit or loss
Cash and bank

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Reserves

Total equity
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FRBEE
iN{I=PNCIL:OE: $2

MBI EEATE

RBEE

BNR - e R EMER IR
BRBRARAEINRZ BAERE
Re RIRTHER

MENVEERR

REBEE
BN R EAERER

mBRERR
FRBEE
EERBRABAE

FEE

RS

BARERE ABEEDS
BEE&IThG

EFD

fFé

B

2016
N
RMB’000
AR%T 7

327,701

327,701

237

7,794
5,083

13,114

2,310
2,310

10,804

338,505

338,505

84,952
(74)
253,627

338,505

RBERRARBNFBERARERAT

2015
—E—hHF
RMB’000
AREFIT

308,500

308,500

241

3,683
6,467

10,391

408
408

9,983

318,483

318,483

85,206

233,277

318,483



Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 R—ZE—X<&E+-A=+—8

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. XQRBHEMRREK(EZ)
COMPANY (Cont'd)
Note: B EE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AATZ EBRENT
Share Share Capital Exchange
premium Contributed option redemption fluctuation Retained  Proposed final
account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total
BAEE N4 BRERE EARERE EXREEE RERN  HERERS 1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFTL ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1§-f-A 84,050 100,175 6,540 2,715 (81,328) 52,480 54,697 219,329
Profit for the year REEER = = = = = 78,718 = 78,718
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEREM2ENE -

Exchange ifferences ERER = - - - 10,347 - - 10,347
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENSLE - - - - 10,347 78,718 - 89,065
Exercise of share options fIfeseiRiE 8,354 - 2172 - - - = 6,182
Final 2014 dividend declared ER-F-NERHKE = = = = = = (54,697) (54,697)
Dividend on shares issued for employee “Z-ME+-A=+-H

share options exercised after EiEREEBRER

31 December 2014 ¥hkhnks = = = = = (4 - (45)
Share repurchased BEERR (15,543) - - 310 - (310) - (15,543)
Equity-settled share option arangements RIS R Z B - - 8,966 - - - = 8,966
Interim 2015 dividend —Z-RERERE - = = = = (19,980) - (19,980)
At31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 A=E-REF-A=+-RR

5 5-A-A 76,861 100,175 13,334 3,025 (70,981) 110,863 - 233217
Proft for the year REERR - - - - - 111,502 = 111592
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEEEMZEERS

Exchange differences EiER - - - - 15,840 - - 15,840
Total comprehensive income for the year KERRANGAE - - - - 15,840 111,592 = 127,432
Exercise of share options ERRE 2122 - (537) - - - - 1,585
Final 2015 dividend declared ER-F-AERHRE = = = - - (80,648) - (80,648)
Dividend on shares issued for employee “Z-R%t+-A=+-R

share options exercised after BENESBRER

31 December 2015 ¥khnks = = = = = () - @)
Share repurchased and cancelled BEEMRA RS (15,349) = = 301 = (301) = (15,349)
Share repurchased and subsequently cancelled  BE[EI2A AIRR(R R Be 1 it i (3,353) - - 4 - (74) - (3,353
Equity-settled share DA 1 BB R B R

option arrangements - - 11,423 - - - - 11,423
Interim 2016 dividend ZE-NERERE = = = = = (20,735) - (20,735)
At 31 December 2016 R=E-~"E+=A=1-A 60,281 100,175 24,220 3,400 (65,141) 120,692 - 253,627
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the then ARARIB BB BRANBN 3 30() Pt iE IR IR S B E AR AT BB I B 2
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group AIERNGEEEFERAARAR ARNEMEEMBITOHAR
Reorganisation referred to in note 30(i), over the nominal value of the Company’s AIRR D E(E R EB1D ©
shares issued in exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are EREREOERERDARRITEBRENAAE  HE—FE
yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based RN R RR I 2.4 AR A RBOGEBRAN - EHFARE
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred RIEREITRAE - HEESEZEBTRARERO GERER - &
to the issued capital account and the share premium account when the related options A ARBRER S EUER - HEERBEREET -

are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related options expire or

be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. MEHmETAHAE

38.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 24 March 2017.

MBBREENR Tt F=A_+HNAEEES
Bt AR ETT o
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for T ARAEBRBERAMREEC2EE EENAE
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited — #52 - )38k B E A KR EZIMBIRE -
financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
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BEEREE

HEE
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Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1+—HILEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XE —T—HF —TNF —T—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR®ETT ARETRE ARBTT

824,351 985,000 783,803 914,973 856,539
(312,872)  (415,612)  (323,884)  (511,725)  (532,144)

511,479 569,388 459,919 403,248 324,395

24,425 31,481 18,728 17,197 14,374
(98,895) (94,471) (99,412)  (112,749)  (104,711)
(64,625) (74,940) (61,009) (61,609) (53,070)
(38,928) (52,745) (56,529) (53,521) (32,522)

(157) (1,524) (2,804) (3,600) (3,825)

333,299 377,189 258,893 188,966 144,641
(67,382) (74,991) (53,748) (35,867) (30,135)

265,917 302,198 205,145 153,099 114,506

265,917 302,198 205,145 153,099 114,506

1,886,364 1,803,736 1,693,400 1,721,148 1,669,643
(249,608) (329,860) (445,120) (629,411) (687,531)
1,636,756 1,473,876 1,248,280 1,091,737 982,112



The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from Monday, 22 May 2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2017 AGM, all transfer of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the
appropriate share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2017 with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

(i)  from Thursday, 1 June 2017 to Friday, 2 June 2017, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish entitiements to
the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate
share transfer forms must be lodged for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2017 with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no
transfers of shares will be registered.

The 2017 AGM will be held on Thursday, 25 May 2017. Details of the
2017 AGM are set out in the notice of AGM with constitutes part of the
circular to Shareholders sent together with this annual report.

ARBBRTIRREERERNDBPELTE

(i)

- E—tFRA-F+-H(EHF ) E=_ZT—+
FRHAZTRRA(ZHM)(BEEEMAK) @ B
EBRHBEFEDTFE  UEBEETARBFE_ZT— &
BREBAFAGURE LREZBRREH o BRERA
AEREE T —+tEREBFRASIT RS LE
Z2HEF BTEARRNBROHEREREERER
BEERE AR -_T—tFRA+NLB(EHR)
THEE=1258 ' RERARRZHEBERDBEFZE
ROREEHRNDERARNEBEERLTFE
AR B2ERKER1835RAFIF L0224 »

H-ZE—tF A —RB(EHME=_FT—tF~
AZH(E2HR)(BEEEMX) BiEHIERG5 B
FETFE NETZEEHRERARSHE
1 o AEREAVRMEZRERBRSZEF
FIEARRRIMRNERERBARERREEZR
£ EAR-_ZE—tFRA=1+—RH(EH=)TF
PUES = +9 81 » REARRB 2 BBRGBBEELD
BREERBSHAERATIIEBSELTFE - HitA
EBEREAERI18IFAMA L 221 o

R ERSR() R WBRBEAR - SRR G B
BRFE-

—-=F

T+ FRRBAFASER _ZE—ttFRA-THA

(2HM) 817 - —T—tFRFEFREBENFED
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Information for Shareholders

BRREH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2016 AGM

Announcement of 2016
interim results

Announcement of 2016
annual results

2017 AGM

DIVIDENDS

2016 Interim dividend

Payment date for 2016
interim dividend

Proposed 2016 final dividend

Ex-dividend date for 2016
final dividend

Book closing dates for 2016
final dividend

Payment date for proposed
2016 final dividend

20 May 2016
26 August 2016

24 March 2017

25 May 2017

HK$0.03 per share

28 September 2016
HK$0.1 per share

29 May 2017

1 June 2017-2 June 2017

on or about 13 June 2017

Bt B &6
—ERAFERERRFAS
D ZE—NFHHER

T FRRBFRE

IRE
ZE-RFHHRE
R NFHHRE
IR B EA
HERRE_T—RF
RIS

TR -RFREKRE

ZE-RFRPKRE
ELL@F A
BRRRE —F—RF
REARR RORAS B AR
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Units 3001-02, 30/F, CNT Tower, 338 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB EHEHEFB3389 308 1:3013001-02F

22 Tianling Road, Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou, Jiangsu, PRC.
A BT R A B8R 1N TT R AP 487 i B[R R B K 2257

www.dawnrays.com
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